
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, February 10, 2022

7 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - City Council members will participate by telephone or other electronic means pursuant to
Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location
may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number: 1-312-626-6799, Webinar
ID: 876 0229 1447 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87602291447.  Individuals wishing to monitor the meeting remotely may do
so in real time by watching the livestream of the meeting on North Oaks Channel 16 and on the City’s
website. Due to the existing COVID-19 Health Pandemic, no more than five (5) members of the public
may be in Council Chambers (Community Room, 100 Village Center Drive,  MN) during the meeting.
Once room capacity is met, anyone wishing to attend the meeting above the five (5) members of the
public who may be present in the room during the meeting will be required to monitor the meeting
remotely.

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda
item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a.  Approval of Licenses:
General Contractor/Mechanical:  4Front Energy Solutions, Bonfe's Plumbing, Heating & Air Service; Centerpoint

Energy Resource Group; The Fireplace Guys; Hero Home Services, Inc.; 
 Majestic Custom Heating & Air; Marsh Heating & Air; Pronto Heating & Air Conditioning; Tim's Quality Plumbing;

Twin City Fireplace & Stone

Arborists:  Arboreal Tree Service; Birch Tree Care; Central Minnesota Tree Service; Sorenson Tree Service

1



City Council February 10, 2022

2

6b.  Approval of Meeting Minutes of December 6, 2021 Special Council Meeting - Performance Review of City
Administrator
12.6.2021 Special City Council Meeting - City Administrator Performance Review.pdf

6c.  Approval of Meeting Minutes of the December 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - City Administrator
Continued Performance Review
12.17.2021 Special City Council Meeting - City Administrator Performance Review.pdf

6d.  Approval of January 8, 2022 Special City Council Strategy Session Meeting Minutes
01.13.2022 City Council Minutes.pdf

6e.  Approval of January 13, 2022 Meeting Minutes
01.13.2022 City Council Minutes.pdf

6f.  Approval of City Financials for January 2022

7.  Petitions, Requests & Communications  - 
Deputy Mike Burrell Report

8.  Unfinished Business
8a.  Continued discussion and possible action on 2022 City Council meeting schedule

9.  New Business
9a.  Consider approval of application for final plan/plat (subdivision) approval for the Red Forest Way development

site (Development Site K of the East Oaks PDA; Tracts C, E, and P, RLS 561) (Applications) Consideration
of resolution deeming applications incomplete and denying approval for Applications
RFW Final Plan Checklist.pdf

Combined Exhibits RFW.pdf

Red Forest Way South - Final Plan Memo.pdf

9b.  Consider resolutions of approval for Conditional Use Permits at properties located at 6, 10, 14, and 16 Sherwood
Trail
GH1258-Tract H RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-COS 010422 (003).pdf

6 Sherwood Trail - Guanzini - Elev for CUP - 1-3-22 Update.pdf

GH1335-Tract F, RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-10 SHERWOOD - COS 010422.pdf

GH1325 TRACT D, RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-14 SHERWOOD-COS 120321.pdf

GH1324-Tract C, EAST PRESERVE-16 SHERWOOD-COS PAGE 2 121621.pdf

Staff Report 6 Sherwood Trail height updated kkjwm1-5-22.pdf

Staff Report 10 Sherwood Trail height finalkk 2-7-22.pdf

Staff Report 14 Sherwood Trail heightkkfinal 2-7-22.pdf

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1234266/12.6.2021_Special_City_Council_Meeting_-_City_Administrator_Performance_Review.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1234268/12.17.2021_Special_City_Council_Meeting_-_City_Administrator_Performance_Review.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1239169/01.13.2022_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1219601/01.13.2022_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238419/RFW_Final_Plan_Checklist.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238670/Combined_Exhibits_RFW.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238711/Red_Forest_Way_South_-_Final_Plan_Memo.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238193/GH1258-Tract_H_RLS_634_EAST_PRESERVE_-COS_010422__003_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238195/6_Sherwood_Trail_-_Guanzini_-_Elev_for_CUP_-_1-3-22_Update.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238198/GH1335-Tract_F__RLS_634_EAST_PRESERVE_-10_SHERWOOD_-_COS_010422.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238205/GH1325_TRACT_D__RLS_634_EAST_PRESERVE_-14_SHERWOOD-COS_120321.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238210/GH1324-Tract_C__EAST_PRESERVE-16_SHERWOOD-COS_PAGE_2_121621.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238194/Staff_Report_6_Sherwood_Trail_height_updated_kkjwm1-5-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238739/Staff_Report_10_Sherwood_Trail_height_finalkk_2-7-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238740/Staff_Report_14_Sherwood_Trail_heightkkfinal_2-7-22.pdf


City Council February 10, 2022

3

Staff Report 16 Sherwood Trail heightkkfinal 2-7-22.pdf

Resolution Approving 6 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf

Resolution Approving 10 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf

Resolution Approving 14 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf

Resolution Approving 16 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf

9c.  Consider resolution approving a septic variance for property located at 9 Ridge Road
SKM_C65921102814070.pdf

Resolution approving 9 ridge road septic variance.pdf

9d.  Consider resident request to extend sewer services to Sherwood Trail lots 15 and 17 from Rapp Farm
subdivision 

9e.Discussion and possible action on North Oaks office lease

9f.Discussion and possible action on climate emergency declaration

10.  Council Member Reports

11.  City Administrator Reports

12.  City Attorney Reports

13.  Miscellaneous
13a.  City Forester January 2022 Report

January 2022 in Review.pdf

14.  Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is Thursday, March 10th, 2022.

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238741/Staff_Report_16_Sherwood_Trail_heightkkfinal_2-7-22.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238742/Resolution_Approving_6_sherwood_trail_home_height_CUP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238743/Resolution_Approving_10_sherwood_trail_home_height_CUP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238744/Resolution_Approving_14_sherwood_trail_home_height_CUP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238747/Resolution_Approving_16_sherwood_trail_home_height_CUP.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238661/SKM_C65921102814070.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1238664/Resolution_approving_9_ridge_road_septic_variance.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1235355/January_2022_in_Review.pdf


North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes – City Administrator Performance Review 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

December 6, 2021 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the Special meeting to order on December 6, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR KEVIN KRESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 

Mayor Ries opened the special meeting at 6:00 p.m. for the purpose of conducting performance 

review of North Oaks City Manager Kevin Kress. 

 

MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to approve the agenda.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to move to a closed session pursuant to Minnesota 

State Statute 13D.05 subd.3. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Mayor Ries closed the public hearing at 6:51 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to adjourn the Council meeting at 7:29 p.m.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

4



North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes – City Administrator Performance Review 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

December 17, 2021 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the Special meeting to order on December 6, 2021 at 9:08 a.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR KEVIN KRESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 

Mayor Ries opened the special meeting at 9:08 a.m. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to move to a closed session pursuant to Minnesota 

State Statute 13D.05 subd.3. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to adjourn the Council meeting at 10:19 a.m.  

Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

5



North Oaks City Council 
Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 
January 13, 2022 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Ries called the meeting to order on Thursday, January 13, 2022 at 7:05 p.m.. The meeting 
is being conducted via Zoom pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021 and the City Resolution. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson, Engineer Tim Korby, 
Engineer John Morast, Forester Mark Rehder 
Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan 
A quorum was declared present.  
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Ries led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
None. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve the Agenda. 
 
Member Shah raised concerns about the late arrival of the agenda packet for the Council and for 
residents. 
 
Administrator Kress noted one item was removed from the agenda and all of the supporting 
documents were added this afternoon as they were compiling things from the other sub-
committees. 
 
Member Shah has a concern about the Conditional Use Permits (CUPs) happening at the 
Planning Commission level and dropping it from the agenda. She stated the Planning 
Commission is pursuing City business and those CUPs are stacking up; there are at least four 
scheduled in two weeks for the Planning Commission. She said what was removed from the 
Agenda, and what the Planning Commission has been waiting for, is direction from this Council 
on how to interpret the CUP language.  
 
Member Watson agrees the packet was late and they strive to have it out sooner. He clarified 
they were interviewing candidates for the Planning Commission and it took until earlier that 
morning to complete all the work. There were only a few modifications to the packet.  
 
Member Shah would like to discuss the removal of the CUP item from the Agenda. 

6



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 2 

Motion carried by roll call as Members Watson, Dujmovic, Hara, and Ries voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
6a. Approval of Licenses: 

General Contractor/Mechanical: Air Comfort Heating & A/C; Carter Custom 
Construction & Fireplace;  CMS/NEXTech, LLC; Erickson Plumbing Heating Air; 
Genz Ryan Plumbing and Heating; Hearth & Home Technologies dba Fireside 
Hearth & Home; Heating & Cooling Two, Inc; Kraus-Anderson Construction 
Company; Krinkie Heating and Air Conditioning Co.; Owens Companies, Inc., 
Schulties Plumbing Inc.; Standard Heating and Air Conditioning  
Arborists: Aaron Boyd's Tree Care; Alex's Lawn & Turf, LLC; Budget Tree 
Service; Clean Cut Outdoor Services; The Davey Tree Expert Company; Expert 
Tree; The FA Bartlett Tree Experts; Hugo's Tree Care Inc.; Langer's Tree LLC; 
Lawrence Tree & Stump Services Inc.; Morgan's Tree Service; Northern Arborists; 
North Woods Industries, LLC; Pioneer Tree Service; Precision Landscape and 
Tree, Inc.; Red Leaf Tree Care LLC; Renstrom Tree Service; Savatree LLC; 
Vineland Tree Care; Woodchuck Tree Care LLC; Woodland Restorations, LLC 
 

6b. City Financials for Approval: 
Check #: 142228 - 14266, EFT # 000501E - 0005123 
 
6c. Approval of December 9, 2021 Special City Council Truth in Taxation Meeting Minutes 
 
6d. Approval of Regular City Council Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2021 
 
6e. Resolution 1445 Approving CUP for excess height at 3 Eastview Lane 
 
6f. Approval of 2022 City Hall Holiday Schedule 
 
6g. Resolution 1446 approving 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
 
6h. Approval of City Investment Policy 
 
6i. Approval of Electronic Fund Transfer Policy 
 
6j. Approval of Agreement for Recycling Processing 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 
unanimously by roll call. 
 
7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
a. Deputy Mike Burrell Report  
 
Deputy Burrell stated North Oaks has had one car theft and a few mail package thefts over the 
past month. One was at Rapp Farm and the people were caught and another had suspects 

7



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 3 

identified who had gone on a long crime spree throughout the metro and criminal charges were 
filed in Forest Lake. He shared that there have also been numerous thefts from autos throughout 
contract cities. He noted residents should be aware that they are happening and that these things 
could move into North Oaks. Contract cities continue to report frauds and Deputy Burrell urged 
people to be careful who they are sending money to and call the company to be sure they are not 
sending money to fraudsters.  
 
b. 2021 City Forester Annual Update 
 
City Forester Mark Rehder gave a presentation, noting the full report is in the packet for the 
Council to review. He noted the biggest impact to the City’s forests is Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) 
which was detected in North Oaks in 2019. EAB inspections are in full swing now during winter 
and he noted numbers are still relatively small but that number will climb. They will continue to 
be vigilant against EAB detection, notification, and compliance of diseased trees.  
 
Mr. Rehder and the Council discussed tree removals within the shoreland ordinance and 
ribboning of trees for pruning and removal throughout the City. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
None. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS  
a. Discussion and possible action on filling Planning and Natural Resource Commission 

vacancies. Review and consideration of amendment to Natural Resource Commission 
Resolution 1447. 
 

Member Watson stated on page 94 of the packet is a policy adopted in 2020 which laid out a 
process for recruitment and recommending board positions in North Oaks for Natural Resources 
Commission (NRC) and Planning Commission (PC). He spoke about vacancies on the NRC as 
well as candidates, stating both are recommended in the Resolution. Member Watson is 
proposing to change the amount of possible Commissioners from seven people to no more than 
nine due to the number of qualified candidates with a wide-range of expertise.  
 
The Council and Attorney Thomson discussed the item. 

 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to amend Resolution #1447 including the 
changes suggested by Attorney Thomson under Composition and Size of Commission, Line 
2 which shall consist of not less than seven and not more than nine voting members. Motion 
carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to reappoint Addie Motta to a three-year term, 
reappoint Andrew Hawkins to a three-year term, and appoint Paul Ellis to a two-year term 
on the Natural Resource Commission. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 

8



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 4 

Member Watson noted there were seven applicants for three positions on the Planning 
Commission. The interview team met with each candidate and the questions are in the packet; he 
noted they were looking for people to add some balance within the Commission.  
 
The Council discussed the candidates (noting they had seven very good people) and the process.   
 
Member Shah asked about the reappointment of standing members as historically they have 
reappointed.  
 
After discussing the issue of reappointing standing members, Administrator Kress shared that he 
understands Member Shah’s point of view and asked what Members Hara and Dujmovic think 
about the issue. 
 
Member Shah stated she would like to finish her point. 
 
Mayor Ries called a point of order noting the floor belongs to Members Hara and Dujmovic.  
 
Member Hara is encouraged by the candidates and would go along with the recommendations of 
those who were on the interview committee. 
 
Member Dujmovic supports the candidates suggested and trusts their judgment.  
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to reappoint Nick Sandell to a three-year term, 
appoint Scott Wiens to a three-year term, and appoint Robert Ostlund to a three-year term 
on the Planning Commission ending December 31, 2024. Motion carried by roll call as 
Members Watson, Dujmovic, Hara, and Ries voted for; Member Shah voted against.  
 
b. Consideration of Resolution 1448 approving 2022 City Council    

Responsibilities/Appointments 
 
Administrator Kress noted there were very few changes made in the document and walked the 
Council through those changes, noting they will incorporate tonight’s appointments to the NRC 
and PC into the resolution. 
 
The Council discussed the responsibilities and appointments before making adjustments and 
finalizing. 
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to approve the appointment list with 
amendments discussed.  
 
Member Shah asked why the City Planner position is blank. 
 
Mayor Ries replied she would like to seek out a new City Planner.  
 
The Council discussed leaving it blank, noting Engineer Korby could recommend some City 
Planner candidates in the interim. 

9



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 5 

 
Administrator Kress stated he can also do some interviews and suggest a temporary City Planner. 
 
Motion carried by roll call as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to provide notice to City Planner Bob Kirmis 
in accordance with the contract, to allow the City to work with interim City Planners, and 
to authorize Administrator Kress to guide the process of appointing a new City Planner. 
 
Member Shah has concerns about the process and not discussing Bob Kirmis before this evening, 
as well as concerns about the upcoming Red Forest Way development as Mr. Kirmis has been 
working on that development. 
 
Motion carried by roll call as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
c. Approval of 2022 City Meeting Schedule 
 
Administrator Kress would like to align some of the meetings so meetings are not every 
Thursday, which impacts members with Planning and Natural Resource Commission meetings. 
He noted they discussed Council workshops just before the regular meetings, as well as having 
two meetings per month for some of the Commissions.  
 
The Council discussed adjustments to the meeting schedule, deciding to bring the item back in 
February after discussing with the Natural Resource and Planning Commissions.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Shah, to approve the 2022 City Meeting Schedule.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
d. Public Hearing 2022 Fee Schedule Ordinance. Discussion and possible action on 2022 

Fee Schedule Ordinance 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to open the public meeting on the Fee Schedule 
Ordinance at 9:08 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
There were no public comments 
 
MOTION by Hara, seconded by Watson, to close the public meeting on the Fee Schedule 
Ordinance at 9:09 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
The Council discussed the Fee Schedule.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, adopt Ordinance #138, 2022 Fee Schedule.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 

10



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 6 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  
 
Member Hara attended the very productive Planning Commission meeting and he spent some 
time with North Oaks Home Owners’ Association looking at a better arrangement for NOHOA 
and City offices. He thanked Dr. Andrew Hawkins from the NRC and everyone on the 
Commissions for their hard work and time.  
 
Member Dujmovic gave some tips for a safety and security perspective and said leaving notes 
out for a delivery driver is an invitation for crime, he encouraged people not to let post office 
items pile up, and said not to leave laptops or phones visible within a car. He also said not to post 
on social media when one is away or on vacation, as 65% of people are burglarized by someone 
they know. Member Dujmovic also suggested not leaving the garage door open, car keys on 
display, or garage door openers in cars that are outside. He had a meeting with Member Watson 
and the Undersheriff earlier in the day and worked through a memorandum of understanding 
which will bring more focus to the policing, they discussed re-introducing Community Service 
Officers, and continued looking at options for the best policing in North Oaks. Member 
Dujmovic would like to recognize a resident, saying George Brushaber passed away in 
December and he and wife Arlene have been residents in North Oaks for 46 years. Member 
Dujmovic stated that George was a remarkable individual who did so much for the community 
and shared that on February 27 at 1:00 p.m. at Bethel University Mr. Brushabor will be 
remembered.  
 
Member Watson is worn out from interviews and conversation about the committee 
appointments. He appreciates the work that the interviewers did regarding the NRC and Planning 
Commission. He will complete phone calls to candidates the following day. Member Watson 
echoed Member Dujmovic and noted George Brushaber was a great guy and a treasure. He 
shared they are initiating a long-range planning assignment with the Fire Board and having some 
serious conversations and that VLAWMO (Vadnais Lakes Area Water Management 
Organization) is also initiating a multi-year plan and are looking at priorities in each of the 
communities.  
 
Member Shah thanked all of the public servants on the NRC and Planning Commission. She said 
VLAWMO Tech will be out on the lake in airboats looking for carp and doing approved 
research. She would also like to express interest in doing a site visit at Red Forest Way.  
 
Mayor Ries thanked Watson for all the time he has dedicated to the community, Administrator 
Kress for all the work in interviewing, Chair Azman, and Dr. Andrew Hawkins. She attended the 
mayors meeting noting popular subjects included public safety and development, specifically 
utilizing Environmental Assessment Worksheets (EAW’s) even for smaller developments. 
Mayor Ries stated they also had their first goal-setting strategic meeting and only got through a 
couple items because of the depth of discussions, noting it was great to dive into the issues and 
discuss all different angles.  
 
11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 
 

11



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 7 

Administrator Kress is working with some other administrators along with Senator Isaacson on 
the fire station build, they are looking at just over $11,000,000 and he should hear feedback soon 
as they are working through it. He is working with White Bear Township and the Golf Course in 
getting the sewer system set up and the Joint Powers Agreement which he hopes to have in 
February for the City Council to look at. Administrator Kress would like to get working with the 
engineers on a Utility Master Plan.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to initiate work through Administrator 
Kress, Engineer Korby, and Engineer Morast on the Utility Master Plan update and Asset 
Management Plan implementation.  
 
The Council discussed the motion. 
 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  
None. 
 
13. MISCELLANEOUS  

a. City Forester December 2021 Updates 
b. Annual Building Report 
c. Engineer report 

 
Engineer Korby shared he has been working on punch lists for Anderson Woods and Nord. 
He will work through Administrator Kress to schedule a tour of Red Forest Way with any of 
those who want to attend. He noted they are about 95% done with review of Red Forest Way. 
 
Engineer Morast shared he has been concentrating on Red Forest Way, Rapp Farms speed 
limits, a City-wide sign inventory, and a stop sign request. 
 
The City Council discussed the Engineer report. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by Hara, seconded by Dujmovic, to adjourn the meeting at 9:47 p.m. Motion 
carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  
 
Date approved____________ 

 

12



North Oaks City Council 
Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 
January 13, 2022 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Ries called the meeting to order on Thursday, January 13, 2022 at 7:05 p.m.. The meeting 
is being conducted via Zoom pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021 and the City Resolution. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom Watson  
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson, Engineer Tim Korby, 
Engineer John Morast, Forester Mark Rehder 
Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan 
A quorum was declared present.  
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Ries led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
None. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve the Agenda. 
 
Member Shah raised concerns about the late arrival of the agenda packet for the Council and for 
residents. 
 
Administrator Kress noted one item was removed from the agenda and all of the supporting 
documents were added this afternoon as they were compiling things from the other sub-
committees. 
 
Member Shah has a concern about the Conditional Use Permits (CUPs) happening at the 
Planning Commission level and dropping it from the agenda. She stated the Planning 
Commission is pursuing City business and those CUPs are stacking up; there are at least four 
scheduled in two weeks for the Planning Commission. She said what was removed from the 
Agenda, and what the Planning Commission has been waiting for, is direction from this Council 
on how to interpret the CUP language.  
 
Member Watson agrees the packet was late and they strive to have it out sooner. He clarified 
they were interviewing candidates for the Planning Commission and it took until earlier that 
morning to complete all the work. There were only a few modifications to the packet.  
 
Member Shah would like to discuss the removal of the CUP item from the Agenda. 

13



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 2 

Motion carried by roll call as Members Watson, Dujmovic, Hara, and Ries voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 
6a. Approval of Licenses: 

General Contractor/Mechanical: Air Comfort Heating & A/C; Carter Custom 
Construction & Fireplace;  CMS/NEXTech, LLC; Erickson Plumbing Heating Air; 
Genz Ryan Plumbing and Heating; Hearth & Home Technologies dba Fireside 
Hearth & Home; Heating & Cooling Two, Inc; Kraus-Anderson Construction 
Company; Krinkie Heating and Air Conditioning Co.; Owens Companies, Inc., 
Schulties Plumbing Inc.; Standard Heating and Air Conditioning  
Arborists: Aaron Boyd's Tree Care; Alex's Lawn & Turf, LLC; Budget Tree 
Service; Clean Cut Outdoor Services; The Davey Tree Expert Company; Expert 
Tree; The FA Bartlett Tree Experts; Hugo's Tree Care Inc.; Langer's Tree LLC; 
Lawrence Tree & Stump Services Inc.; Morgan's Tree Service; Northern Arborists; 
North Woods Industries, LLC; Pioneer Tree Service; Precision Landscape and 
Tree, Inc.; Red Leaf Tree Care LLC; Renstrom Tree Service; Savatree LLC; 
Vineland Tree Care; Woodchuck Tree Care LLC; Woodland Restorations, LLC 
 

6b. City Financials for Approval: 
Check #: 142228 - 14266, EFT # 000501E - 0005123 
 
6c. Approval of December 9, 2021 Special City Council Truth in Taxation Meeting Minutes 
 
6d. Approval of Regular City Council Meeting Minutes of December 13, 2021 
 
6e. Resolution 1445 Approving CUP for excess height at 3 Eastview Lane 
 
6f. Approval of 2022 City Hall Holiday Schedule 
 
6g. Resolution 1446 approving 2040 Comprehensive Plan 
 
6h. Approval of City Investment Policy 
 
6i. Approval of Electronic Fund Transfer Policy 
 
6j. Approval of Agreement for Recycling Processing 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried 
unanimously by roll call. 
 
7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
a. Deputy Mike Burrell Report  
 
Deputy Burrell stated North Oaks has had one car theft and a few mail package thefts over the 
past month. One was at Rapp Farm and the people were caught and another had suspects 

14



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 3 

identified who had gone on a long crime spree throughout the metro and criminal charges were 
filed in Forest Lake. He shared that there have also been numerous thefts from autos throughout 
contract cities. He noted residents should be aware that they are happening and that these things 
could move into North Oaks. Contract cities continue to report frauds and Deputy Burrell urged 
people to be careful who they are sending money to and call the company to be sure they are not 
sending money to fraudsters.  
 
b. 2021 City Forester Annual Update 
 
City Forester Mark Rehder gave a presentation, noting the full report is in the packet for the 
Council to review. He noted the biggest impact to the City’s forests is Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) 
which was detected in North Oaks in 2019. EAB inspections are in full swing now during winter 
and he noted numbers are still relatively small but that number will climb. They will continue to 
be vigilant against EAB detection, notification, and compliance of diseased trees.  
 
Mr. Rehder and the Council discussed tree removals within the shoreland ordinance and 
ribboning of trees for pruning and removal throughout the City. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
None. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS  
a. Discussion and possible action on filling Planning and Natural Resource Commission 

vacancies. Review and consideration of amendment to Natural Resource Commission 
Resolution 1447. 
 

Member Watson stated on page 94 of the packet is a policy adopted in 2020 which laid out a 
process for recruitment and recommending board positions in North Oaks for Natural Resources 
Commission (NRC) and Planning Commission (PC). He spoke about vacancies on the NRC as 
well as candidates, stating both are recommended in the Resolution. Member Watson is 
proposing to change the amount of possible Commissioners from seven people to no more than 
nine due to the number of qualified candidates with a wide-range of expertise.  
 
The Council and Attorney Thomson discussed the item. 

 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to amend Resolution #1447 including the 
changes suggested by Attorney Thomson under Composition and Size of Commission, Line 
2 which shall consist of not less than seven and not more than nine voting members. Motion 
carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to reappoint Addie Motta to a three-year term, 
reappoint Andrew Hawkins to a three-year term, and appoint Paul Ellis to a two-year term 
on the Natural Resource Commission. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 

15



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 4 

Member Watson noted there were seven applicants for three positions on the Planning 
Commission. The interview team met with each candidate and the questions are in the packet; he 
noted they were looking for people to add some balance within the Commission.  
 
The Council discussed the candidates (noting they had seven very good people) and the process.   
 
Member Shah asked about the reappointment of standing members as historically they have 
reappointed.  
 
After discussing the issue of reappointing standing members, Administrator Kress shared that he 
understands Member Shah’s point of view and asked what Members Hara and Dujmovic think 
about the issue. 
 
Member Shah stated she would like to finish her point. 
 
Mayor Ries called a point of order noting the floor belongs to Members Hara and Dujmovic.  
 
Member Hara is encouraged by the candidates and would go along with the recommendations of 
those who were on the interview committee. 
 
Member Dujmovic supports the candidates suggested and trusts their judgment.  
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to reappoint Nick Sandell to a three-year term, 
appoint Scott Wiens to a three-year term, and appoint Robert Ostlund to a three-year term 
on the Planning Commission ending December 31, 2024. Motion carried by roll call as 
Members Watson, Dujmovic, Hara, and Ries voted for; Member Shah voted against.  
 
b. Consideration of Resolution 1448 approving 2022 City Council    

Responsibilities/Appointments 
 
Administrator Kress noted there were very few changes made in the document and walked the 
Council through those changes, noting they will incorporate tonight’s appointments to the NRC 
and PC into the resolution. 
 
The Council discussed the responsibilities and appointments before making adjustments and 
finalizing. 
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to approve the appointment list with 
amendments discussed.  
 
Member Shah asked why the City Planner position is blank. 
 
Mayor Ries replied she would like to seek out a new City Planner.  
 
The Council discussed leaving it blank, noting Engineer Korby could recommend some City 
Planner candidates in the interim. 

16



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 5 

 
Administrator Kress stated he can also do some interviews and suggest a temporary City Planner. 
 
Motion carried by roll call as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to provide notice to City Planner Bob Kirmis 
in accordance with the contract, to allow the City to work with interim City Planners, and 
to authorize Administrator Kress to guide the process of appointing a new City Planner. 
 
Member Shah has concerns about the process and not discussing Bob Kirmis before this evening, 
as well as concerns about the upcoming Red Forest Way development as Mr. Kirmis has been 
working on that development. 
 
Motion carried by roll call as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 
Member Shah voted against.  
 
c. Approval of 2022 City Meeting Schedule 
 
Administrator Kress would like to align some of the meetings so meetings are not every 
Thursday, which impacts members with Planning and Natural Resource Commission meetings. 
He noted they discussed Council workshops just before the regular meetings, as well as having 
two meetings per month for some of the Commissions.  
 
The Council discussed adjustments to the meeting schedule, deciding to bring the item back in 
February after discussing with the Natural Resource and Planning Commissions.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Shah, to approve the 2022 City Meeting Schedule.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
d. Public Hearing 2022 Fee Schedule Ordinance. Discussion and possible action on 2022 

Fee Schedule Ordinance 
 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to open the public meeting on the Fee Schedule 
Ordinance at 9:08 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
There were no public comments 
 
MOTION by Hara, seconded by Watson, to close the public meeting on the Fee Schedule 
Ordinance at 9:09 p.m. Motion carried unanimously by roll call.  
 
The Council discussed the Fee Schedule.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, adopt Ordinance #138, 2022 Fee Schedule.  
Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 

17



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 6 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  
 
Member Hara attended the very productive Planning Commission meeting and he spent some 
time with North Oaks Home Owners’ Association looking at a better arrangement for NOHOA 
and City offices. He thanked Dr. Andrew Hawkins from the NRC and everyone on the 
Commissions for their hard work and time.  
 
Member Dujmovic gave some tips for a safety and security perspective and said leaving notes 
out for a delivery driver is an invitation for crime, he encouraged people not to let post office 
items pile up, and said not to leave laptops or phones visible within a car. He also said not to post 
on social media when one is away or on vacation, as 65% of people are burglarized by someone 
they know. Member Dujmovic also suggested not leaving the garage door open, car keys on 
display, or garage door openers in cars that are outside. He had a meeting with Member Watson 
and the Undersheriff earlier in the day and worked through a memorandum of understanding 
which will bring more focus to the policing, they discussed re-introducing Community Service 
Officers, and continued looking at options for the best policing in North Oaks. Member 
Dujmovic would like to recognize a resident, saying George Brushabor passed away in 
December and he and wife Arlene have been residents in North Oaks for 46 years. Member 
Dujmovic stated that George was a remarkable individual who did so much for the community 
and shared that on February 27 at 1:00 p.m. at Bethel University Mr. Brushabor will be 
remembered.  
 
Member Watson is worn out from interviews and conversation about the committee 
appointments. He appreciates the work that the interviewers did regarding the NRC and Planning 
Commission. He will complete phone calls to candidates the following day. Member Watson 
echoed Member Dujmovic and noted George Brushabor was a great guy and a treasure. He 
shared they are initiating a long-range planning assignment with the Fire Board and having some 
serious conversations and that VLAWMO (Vadnais Lakes Area Water Management 
Organization) is also initiating a multi-year plan and are looking at priorities in each of the 
communities.  
 
Member Shah thanked all of the public servants on the NRC and Planning Commission. She said 
VLAWMO Tech will be out on the lake in airboats looking for carp and doing approved 
research. She would also like to express interest in doing a site visit at Red Forest Way.  
 
Mayor Ries thanked Watson for all the time he has dedicated to the community, Administrator 
Kress for all the work in interviewing, Chair Azman, and Dr. Andrew Hawkins. She attended the 
mayors meeting noting popular subjects included public safety and development, specifically 
utilizing Environmental Assessment Worksheets (EAW’s) even for smaller developments. 
Mayor Ries stated they also had their first goal-setting strategic meeting and only got through a 
couple items because of the depth of discussions, noting it was great to dive into the issues and 
discuss all different angles.  
 
11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 
 

18



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  January 13, 2022
  
 

P a g e  | 7 

Administrator Kress is working with some other administrators along with Senator Isaacson on 
the fire station build, they are looking at just over $11,000,000 and he should hear feedback soon 
as they are working through it. He is working with White Bear Township and the Golf Course in 
getting the sewer system set up and the Joint Powers Agreement which he hopes to have in 
February for the City Council to look at. Administrator Kress would like to get working with the 
engineers on a Utility Master Plan.  
 
MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to initiate work through Administrator 
Kress, Engineer Korby, and Engineer Morast on the Utility Master Plan update and Asset 
Management Plan implementation.  
 
The Council discussed the motion. 
 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  
None. 
 
13. MISCELLANEOUS  

a. City Forester December 2021 Updates 
b. Annual Building Report 
c. Engineer report 

 
Engineer Korby shared he has been working on punch lists for Anderson Woods and Nord. 
He will work through Administrator Kress to schedule a tour of Red Forest Way with any of 
those who want to attend. He noted they are about 95% done with review of Red Forest Way. 
 
Engineer Morast shared he has been concentrating on Red Forest Way, Rapp Farms speed 
limits, a City-wide sign inventory, and a stop sign request. 
 
The City Council discussed the Engineer report. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION by Hara, seconded by Dujmovic, to adjourn the meeting at 9:47 p.m. Motion 
carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  
 
Date approved____________ 

 

19



Page 1 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RED FOREST WAY FINAL PLAN/FINAL PLAT SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

AND PROCESS 

  

20



Page 2 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

1999 EAST OAKS PDA (AS AMENDED) 

The East Oaks PDA requires that final plans be submitted and approved for all development sites 

within the East Oaks Development.  

 

Final Plan Definition:  “Final Plan” means the: 

A.  Registered Land Survey; 

B. Development Contract; and  

C. Detailed plans and drawings approved by the City pursuant to the zoning ordinance 

and the subdivision ordinance for each Development Site that shall address the 

following: 

 

 Grading 

 Wetlands 

 Surface water quality 

 Storm water controls, erosion controls and drainage 

 Street and lot layout 

 Utilities 

 Landscaping 

 Basement elevations 

 Signage  

 Easement for utilities 

Prior to Final Plan Approval Developer Shall Comply with the Following Requirements: 

PDA Final 

Plan Approval 

Requirement 

Item Required to be Filed with 

City 

Has Item 

Been Filed 

with City? 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document and Page 

Number for 

Submission 

 Model deed restrictions, covenants, 

and restrictions, and any proposed 

HOA documents, articles of 

incorporation or bylaws or other 

documents controlling the use and 

maintenance of land within the 

Development Site; proposed 

declarations (see Sections 2.4, 7.1, 

of the PDA; See Model 

Development Contract Sections 3.8 

and 9.1)   

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

Received and 

forwarded to 

NOHOA. 

21



Page 3 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

PDA unless otherwise approved by 

the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

East Oaks Project Master 

Development Plan unless otherwise 

approved by the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Final Plan must conform with the 

preliminary plan for the 

development site unless otherwise 

approved by the Council 

 

Y 

As approved by PZ 

and City Council. 

 Submit soil boring as required by the 

City Engineer 

Y Ensuring design 

compliance during 

plan review 

 Submit final road designs as 

required by the City Engineer 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans  

 Submit typical pavement sections as 

required by the City Engineer 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 

 Submit grading quantities for the 

roadways as required by the City 

Engineer 

Y Provided for entire 

site 

 Submit overall detailed grading 

plans and a narrative which 

addresses how Development Site 

grading for utilities, street, and 

individual Development Site 

Development will occur; subject to 

Council and VLAWMO approval 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Review and recommendation from 

VLAWMO 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Submit overall detailed grading 

plans which include an overall 

erosion control plan which addresses 

erosion control and protection of 

surface water quality; subject to 

Council and VLAWMO approval 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Review and recommendation from 

VLAWMO 

Y  

 Obtain all necessary approvals, 

permits, and licenses from the City 

Y Some City approvals 

will be conditions of 

22



Page 4 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

final plan approval 

(e.g., execution of 

development 

agreement) 

 Obtain all necessary approvals, 

permits, and licenses from other 

regulatory entities and agencies with 

jurisdiction over the Development 

Site 

Y Some agency 

approvals will be 

conditions of final 

plan approval (e.g., 

recording of the RLS 

with County) 

 Major design requirements of the 

City shall be determined prior to 

construction and incorporated into 

the Final Plan 

Y Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Major design requirements of other 

regulatory entities and agencies with 

jurisdiction over the development 

site shall be determined prior to 

construction and incorporated into 

the Final Plan 

Y Comments provided, 

with additional 

meetings for 

incorporation into 

final plans 

 City Engineer must approve 

Developer’s Contract for installation 

of all utilities  

N/A No utilities proposed 

 

  

23



Page 5 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

CHAPTER 152: SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

Section 152.022: Approval of Plat 

City Code 

Section 

152.022: 

Approval of 

Plat 

Item Required to be Filed with 

City 

Has Item 

Been Filed 

with City? 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document and Page 

Number for 

Submission 

 An original and 20 copies of the 

final drawing 

 

Y Per City Staff, 

received by City 

 Certificate of surveyor Y 

 

Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plan 

 Legal description of parcel to be 

subdivided 

Y Application; plans 

 Owner’s statement (if subdivider is 

not owner) 

N/A Subdivider is owner 

 Notarized certificate of all mortgage 

holders acknowledging adoption of 

plat 

N/A No mortgage per 

Developer 

 Proof of ownership (registered 

property certificate) 

Y  

 Performance bond (unless Council 

determines subdivider is responsible 

and financially sound) in the amount 

equal to 1.5 x the City Engineer’s 

estimated cost of the required 

improvements to guarantee 

completion of improvements and 

payment of city attorney fees 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

Not provided; will be 

provided as part of 

Development 

Agreement as is 

typical practice.  

 Two (2) copies of the final plat 

(NOTE: Plat is defined as a 

Registered Land Survey) showing 

the location, width, and type of each 

easement and any other special 

provisions 

 

Y 

 

Comments provided 

for incorporation into 

final plans 

 Detailed descriptions, similar to 

those contained in the individual 

warranty deeds, of each easement 

and special provision, including the 

legal description of location, 

restrictions as to use of land where 

 

 

 

Y 

Easements shown on 

plat; included in 

easement binder. 

24



Page 6 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

easement is located or provision 

applies, and right of use of and 

access to easement 

 If easements are moved slightly 

during road construction process, a 

final record or as-built plat is to be 

submitted showing final easement 

locations 

 

 

Y 

 

Will be reviewed 

with NOHOA and 

during construction. 

Changes will be 

captured on as-builts 

 

  

25



Page 7 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

CONDITIONS INCLUDED IN PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL 

RESOLUTION NO. 1412 

 

 

Resolution 

No. 1402 

Requirement from Preliminary Plan 

Approval 

Has Item 

Been 

Completed 

(Y/N or 

N/A) 

Notes/Specific 

Reference to 

Document 

and Page 

Number for 

Submission 

 

 Street and Trail Systems 

 

 

 

  

 Horizontal and vertical curves shall be 

designed to meet MnDOT standards for a 30- 

mph design speed, including the required 

horizontal stopping site distance for vehicles at 

the proposed cut-de-sac street intersection. If 

necessary, the street layout shall be revised on 

final plans to meet those design standards 

and/or plans shall indicate speed advisory signs 

on the final plans where required if the site and 

stopping distance does not meet the 30-mph 

design speed. 

 

 

 

 

Y 

  

 The applicant’s engineer shall also verify in the 

field the available site distance for the proposed 

intersection at Catbird Lane based on MnDOT 

guidelines. The minimum site distance shall 

meet the MnDOT guidelines for required 

stopping site distance for a 30- mph design 

speed 

 

 

Y 

  

 Plans shall be revised such that final 

construction plans include the following: 

a) Proposed street names 

b) Proposed street light standard locations, if 

any 

 

Y 

 

 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final 

plans. 

 

 Edits of the Typical Street Sections, and Street 

Notes will be required as a part of the final 

construction plan development: 

a) MnDOT Class 5-100% crushed granite 

quarry rock shall be shown in the shoulder area 

to a depth of 3.5 inches (this requirement is 

consistent with previously approved and 

 

 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final 

plans. Final 

design are 

being 

discussed 

 

26



Page 8 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

constructed Red Forest Way- Phase 2B 

project.) 

b) Details shall reference MnDOT Spec. 3138 

for the aggregate material. 

c) The proposed bituminous mix type for the 

wear course is reflected in the street section 

detail. Base course mix type shall also be 

identified. 

d) Cross slope shall be revised to 2 percent. 

e) The width of the proposed B612 concrete 

curb shall be modified from 2 feet to 20 inches. 

between the 

City, NOHOA 

and the NOC. 

 The proposed street layout includes a section of 

proposed curb and gutter between stations 

13+80 and 18+50. According to the North Oaks 

Comprehensive Plan, the City of North Oaks, 

through its ordinances, will maintain the 

present rural character of the road system. The 

applicant shall complete an alternate design 

concept for this section of roadway to 

demonstrate the feasibility of a rural section. 

Converting this section of roadway to rural 

section may eliminate the need for storm sewer 

in this area 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

Final sections 

are being 

discussed 

between City, 

NOHOA and 

NOC to 

reduce tree 

removal and 

cut sections, 

and to address 

drainage 

 

 Plan and profile information shall be provided 

for roadways and trail system as part of final 

construction plans 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 

 The proposed site plan shall be submitted to the 

Lake Johanna fire department for review and 

comment. Proposed recommendations shall be 

incorporated into final plans 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final 

plans. 

 

 The applicant’s engineer shall submit a 

pavement design with the final construction 

plans, in accordance with Geotechnical 

recommendations. The design shall be 

completed in accordance with the MnDOT 

Flexible Pavement Design as outlined in the 

Road Design Manual. The street section shall 

be designed for a minimum 7-ton design and a 

20-year design life and plans updated to reflect 

this design. 

 

 

Y 

 

Geotechnical 

investigation 

underway for 

final roadway 

design 

 

 

 

 Proposed bituminous shall be placed in two 

lifts. The final lift shall be placed one 

construction season after any utilities have been 

installed within the street limits 

 

Y 

 

  

27



Page 9 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 The applicant shall verify the proposed primary 

trail alignment and termination points with 

NOHOA and provide written documentation of 

verification along with accompanying exhibit 

delineating agreed upon trail alignment. Final 

plans shall illustrate any alignment revisions as 

agreed upon by NOHOA. Trail alignment shall 

be cleared and graded at a width of 12-feet. 

Details of any resurfacing for trail areas shall 

be included in final plans. 

 

 

 

Trail 

easements are 

being 

discussed with 

NOC and 

NOHOA to  

be finalized 

during 

construction, 

with existing 

site conditions 

 

 Surface Water Management and Site 

Grading Design 

   

 The proposed storm water management and 

drainage system and site grading design shall 

conform to the requirements of the current City 

of North Oaks Surface Water Management 

Plan and Chapter 156, the City Stormwater 

Management Ordinance. These requirements 

include but are not limited to volume control, 

rate control and water quality requirements to 

mitigate new impervious areas and sediment 

removal. A storm water management report, 

outlining the design analysis for the site, 

including exhibits and calculations, as required, 

shall be submitted for review and approval with 

the final construction plans which will contain 

details for all structures and proposed BMPs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Details of stormwater basin design, including 

typical cross sections and details for outlet 

structures shall be included in the final 

construction plans and shall adhere to 

recommendations found within the 

Geotechnical report based on soil borings and 

field verified ground water elevations. 

 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Provide skimmer structure details for storm 

water outlets and with the final construction 

plans. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The proposed storm sewer and site grading 

final design and construction plans shall be 

reviewed and approved by the City Engineer, 

and VLAWMO. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

28



Page 10 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 Identify the emergency overflow locations and 

elevations (EOF) on the final grading plan for 

all surface water features, including wetlands, 

ponds, swales or ditches, based on actual field 

topographic survey information. These EOF 

elevations should be reviewed as a part of the 

building permit review process for each 

adjoining lot. 

 

Y 

 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Label all EOF points and elevations for 

roadway and greenspace emergency overflow 

locations on the final grading plans. 

 

Y 

 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Provide earthwork volume calculations with the 

construction plan submittal to the City. 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 Landlocked drainage basins are located within 

and adjacent to the site. If possible, exposed 

openings on buildings should be constructed a 

minimum of 1.5 feet above the overflow 

elevation of the landlocked basin. If the 

exposed building opening cannot be 

constructed 1.5 feet above the overflow, we 

recommend the exposed opening be 

constructed a minimum of 5 feet above the 100 

year- 10-day snow melt highwater elevation of 

the landlocked basin. Minimum exposed 

building elevations shall be identified on the 

final grading construction plans where this 

condition exists. 

N/A Will be 

reviewed at 

building 

permit 

submittal 

 

 

 A number of FES inverts appear to match the 

basin bottom elevations. Applicant’s engineer 

shall review the final design of all pond outlet 

elevations with the final plan development and 

stormwater analysis to determine if the basin 

designs meet the stormwater management 

requirements. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Proposed septic system drainfields and wells 

shall not encroach in the 30-foot building 

setback areas as noted in item F of Section 

151.056 of the Zoning Code. It appears there 

are drainfields shown on the preliminary plan 

which encroach in the setback areas in multiple 

locations. The drainfield locations shall be 

modified on the final plans to strictly adhere to 

setback areas. Additionally, drainfields shall 

not encroach into the site grading limit areas. 

 

 

 Y 

Actual 

drainfield 

locations to be 

reviewed at 

building 

permit 

submittal 

 

 

 

29



Page 11 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

Drainfields currently shown encroaching into 

grading areas need to be modified as a part of 

final plan development. 

 Construction traffic shall be restricted from all 

septic system drainfield sites, including the 

future drainfield sites in Phase 2. Fencing shall 

be placed around the perimeter of the proposed 

drainfield sites if there is a risk of traffic 

traversing across those areas. 

 

Y 

No individual 

site grading is 

proposed. Will 

be addressed 

at building 

permit phase 

 

 The preliminary grading plan indicates a 

proposed longitudinal slope of approximately 1 

percent in the road ditch section in some areas. 

In areas where the ditch section will be 

maintained by the homeowner, we recommend 

a drain tile system be installed in a ditch section 

with a slope less than 2 percent if the existing 

subgrade soil is not free draining. This design 

must be reviewed by the applicants engineer as 

a part of the final plan development 

 

 

 

 

Y 

 

 

 

 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 A drain tile system shall be provided on the 

street subgrade surface at the street low points 

if a clayey type subgrade exists. The drain tile 

shall extend to the ditch section to drain. A 

rodent screen shall be provided at the tile outlet 

 

 

Y 

Drain tiles 

provided at 

basins. Road 

geotech will 

determine 

subgrade soils. 

Added if 

required 

 

 The “Street Notes” shown on Sheet 4A indicate 

the ditch bottom is to be a width of 5 feet. 

However, the plan is drawn at a width of 2 to 3 

feet. It is suggested that a minimum width of 5 

feet. The final plans shall reflect this change. 

 

Y 

Road sections 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections 

 

 A “basin” is proposed near the street entrance 

at Catbird Lane. Final plans shall address the 

following comments: 

a) Clarification shall be provided, along with 

construction details for whether the basin is to 

be an infiltration or filtration basin and how 

sediment will be controlled. 

b) The proposed invert elevation of the street 

cross culvert outlet matches the basin bottom 

elevation. The proposed culvert will freeze in 

the winter and may cause flooding issues. 

Therefore, the grading design shall be revised 

 

 

Y 

  

30



Page 12 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

as a part of the final plan development. The 

outlet elevation of the culvert shall be at, or 

above the basins outlet elevation 

 If curb and gutter section is constructed, it is 

recommended to consider the following in 

order to to reduce the risk of erosion: consider 

adding two storm sewer extensions from the 

proposed catch basins on the south side of the 

street to the proposed ditch located on the north 

side of the street. The first flared end section 

would be located near street station 14+70, and 

the second flared end would be located near 

street station 16+40. A small berm could be 

constructed downstream of each proposed 

flared end section. The extension to station 

16+40 would prevent drainage from crossing 

the proposed trail to be constructed 

approximately 40 feet downstream 

 

 

Y 

Road sections 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections and 

where to 

include curb 

and gutter 

 

 It is recommended to consider reducing the 

ditch section depth from the proposed 2.5 foot 

depth as shown on the plan to a depth of 2 feet, 

while widening the ditch bottom to a minimum 

width of 8 feet from the following street 

sections to reduce velocity of flow in the ditch 

and reduce the risk of erosion: 

a) station 14+00 to station 16+40 

b) station 20+50 to station 21+75 

 

 

Y 

Road sections 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections to 

reduce grading 

footprint 

 

 The existing topography for the area located 

along the south side of the proposed Outlot as 

shown on the grading plan does not match the 

existing topography shown on the Existing 

Conditions plan. We recommend the applicants 

engineer review the topography and the 

proposed site grade design to determine if a 

storm sewer should be extended to drain the 

existing depression. 

 

 

Y 

Storm 

structure 

located at this 

location for 

future tie-in, if 

necessary 

 

 It is recommended that the grading plan be 

revised to illustrate a “bench” for the proposed 

future trail with a maximum cross slope of 2 

percent shown on the Phase 1 plan within the 

limits of the proposed trail easement of the 

Outlot parcel. 

 

Y 

Easements are 

being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

locations 

 

 Proposed trail routes shall be graded such that 

stormwater is not conveyed across the surface 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

 

31



Page 13 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

of the trail, but directed to a drainage swale and 

away from the trail surface. 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 Revise the grading plan to show a ditch along 

the easterly side of the street from Station 

19+50 to Station 21+25. 

 

Y 

Road sections 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections 

 

 Add a storm sewer extension from the proposed 

catch basin at station 14+05 to the south to 

drain the proposed street ditch. The flared end 

would be located on the easterly side of the 

road at approximately station 13+80. 

 

Y 

Storm system 

adjusted to 

accommodate 

drainage 

 

 Revise/fix the proposed contours on the ditch 

backslope from station 20+50 to station 21+50. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 It is recommended that storm sewer be 

extended from the proposed pond to the current 

proposed culvert at the cut-de-sac street 

intersection. A catch basin could be added in 

the the proposed ditch section- approximately 

55 feet from the flared end section at the pond. 

Also, a storm sewer could be extended to the 

south to pick-up drainage in the ditch. The 

flared end section in the ditch would be located 

near station 17+00. 

a) This additional storm sewer will reduce the 

risk of erosion, and also provide a crossing for 

the proposed trail and maintenance drive to be 

located southwesterly of the proposed pond. 

b) Provide a minimum 10 wide bench at a cross 

slope of 2 percent along the south westerly side 

of the proposed pond for the proposed trail and 

also maintenance drive. 

c) Provide a 10:1 bench from the NWL of the 

pond to a depth of 1 foot. 

 

 

Y 

Drainage 

comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The applicants engineer shall review the 

velocity of stormwater for a 25 year storm in 

the proposed ditch along both sides of the road 

between station 24 +00 to station 13+00. 

Analysis shall be used in determination of 

necessary BMP's to be used along this corridor. 

Determine if ditch bottom needs to be widened 

to reduce the velocity. 

 

Y 

Road sections 

and drainage 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections to 

 

32



Page 14 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

minimize 

impacts 

 It is recommended the two septic drainfield 

sites for proposed lot 3 in Phase 2 be shown on 

the final construction plan for Phase 1. The 

proposed grading as shown in this lot may need 

to be modified to protect the drainfield site 

from construction traffic and embankment 

placement 

 

N/A 

No individual 

lot, or outlet  

grading is 

occurring 

within shown 

building 

footprint. 

Phase 2 

grading will 

be reviewed 

upon submittal 

and drainfields 

restricted as 

needed with 

any grading 

 

 Revise the proposed cut-de-sac radius in Phase 

2 from 45 feet to 50 feet to the edge of the 

bituminous to allow a bus to maneuver. 

Y No cul-de-sacs 

are proposed 

 

 The applicant’s engineer shall determine if the 

proposed storm sewer to be located between 

lots 13 and 14 is necessary as a part of the 

stormwater management analysis, or if it is 

required to develop the proposed lot. 

Y   

 An existing culvert is shown under the existing 

drive near station 0+60. This existing culvert 

should be addressed as part of the proposed 

design or removals. A berm should be 

constructed in the ditch near the property 

boundary to prevent water in the ditch from 

draining onto the existing residence property to 

avoid a change in the subwatershed boundary. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 It is recommended that a topographic survey of 

approximately 100 feet of the existing 

pavement surface be completed in order 

establish the proposed centerline grade into the 

development to match the existing pavement 

surface elevation and to provide a smooth 

longitudinal grade transition on the pavement 

surface. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Erosion control measures, including silt fence 

placement shall be reviewed as part of the final 

plan application. Double silt fence shall be 

Y   

33



Page 15 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

installed adjacent to all wetlands or approved 

equivalent. 

 The proposed rock entrance at Catbird Lane 

shall be lenthened to 50 feet as shown on the 

detail. 

Y   

 Add a rock entrance on Black Lake Road near 

station 0+60. 

Y   

 AppIicant’s engineer to review the rock 

entrance detail to determine if a vehicle can 

cross the proposed berm shown at a depth of 2 

feet. Detail shall be revised if needed. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 AppIicant’s engineer to review the required 

BMPs to control erosion from the proposed 

culvert (if installed) at station 0+65 to Wetland 

1, to determine, for example, if rock check 

dams are warranted in this area. Also, review 

the following: 

a) The velocity and required BMPs in the 

proposed ditch from station 13+50 to 

station 16+50. 

b) The required BMPs for the ditch 

backslope between 13+75 to station 

14+40. 

c) The velocity and required BMPs in the 

proposed ditch from station 20+50 to 

station 22+25 along the westerly side of 

the road. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The applicant’s engineer shall review and 

determine if Storm Sewer Note #9 applies to 

this project 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Add a storm sewer extension from the proposed 

catch basin at station 14+05 to the south to 

drain the proposed street ditch. The flared end 

would be located on the easterly side of the 

road at approximately station 13+80. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The storm sewer from FES 10 to STMH 11 is 

shown at 0.00 percent. The slope shall be 

reviewed with the final plan development. 

Y   

 Final plans shall indicate the removal of the 

following: 

a) The existing driveway culvert located near 

station 5+75. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

34



Page 16 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

b) The existing culvert at approximate station 

0+60. The applicant’s engineer shall determine 

if the existing culvert is to be replaced with a 

new culvert. 

 To reduce the risk of erosion, we recommend 

the applicant consider adding two storm sewer 

extensions from the proposed catch basins on 

the south side of the street to the proposed ditch 

located on the north side of the street. The first 

flared end section would be located near street 

station 14+70, and the second flared end would 

be located near street station 16+40. 

Y Grading 

comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Staff recommends the applicant review the 

location of existing trees with the final grading 

design to determine if any trees can be saved at, 

or near the proposed cut/fill limits and in 

proposed green space areas. Final construction 

plans shall identify existing trees to be saved 

and protected in accordance with City Forester 

recommendations. 

Y Road sections 

and drainage 

are being 

discussed with 

NOHOA and 

NOC for final 

sections to 

minimize 

impacts 

 

 A Geotechnical report shall be submitted with 

the final construction plans. Report shall 

indicate soil boring locations which will be 

illustrated on final plans, including ground 

water conditions at locations which align with 

proposed road, stormwater management 

facilities and utilities. The applicant's 

Geotechnical Engineer shall provide a 

recommended separation from the basement 

floor to the estimated groundwater surface 

elevation for each proposed lot. It is 

recommended that lowest floor elevations for 

the development be located a minimum of 4 

feet above the estimated ground water level, or 

as recommended by the Soils Engineer. 

Restrictive lowest floor building elevations 

shall be identified on the final grading 

construction plans. Report shall also include 

infiltration rates and design recommendations 

for the any proposed infiltration areas based on 

applicable borings. 

Y Geotechnical 

investigation 

underway to 

determine 

final soil 

conditions. 

Ground water 

and basement 

elevations will 

be determined 

building 

permit and/or 

CUP 

application, 

when 

applicable  

 

 It is recommended that driveway longitudinal 

slopes be designed at a minimum of 3 percent, 

and a maximum of 10 percent. Where proposed 

 

Y 

Not designed, 

but locations 

are schematic. 

 

35



Page 17 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

grading design ties into the roadway at slopes 

greater than 10%, a conceptual grading detail 

shall be provided illustrating how access can be 

constructed to the buildable area of the 

proposed lots. For example, Lot 7 illustrates a 

nearly 20-foot elevation differential between 

the proposed access point to the assumed home 

location. 

Actual slopes 

and elevations 

will be 

determined 

building 

permit and/or 

CUP 

application. 

 A grading plan for each “custom” lot shall be 

submitted with each building permit 

application. Proposed grades around the 

perimeter of the proposed homes shall meet the 

requirements of the state building code. It is 

recommended that a minimum driveway slope 

of 3 percent and a maximum slope of 10 

percent if possible. 

 

Y 

Structural  

elevations will 

be determined 

building 

permit and/or 

CUP 

application, 

when 

applicable 

 

 Proposed grades around the perimeter of the 

proposed homes shall meet the requirements of 

the State Building Code. 

 

Y 

Building  

elevations will 

be determined 

at building 

permit and/or 

CUP. 

 

 The final plans shall identify and provide a 

graded access bench to and around all Ponds 

for future maintenance. The access surface to 

be a minimum width of 10 feet at a minimum 

cross slope of 3 percent and a maximum 

longitudinal slope of 10 percent. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Staff recommends that the 100-year high water 

elevation for all site surface water features, 

including wetlands, be determined and shown 

on the final grading plan. These high-water 

elevations should be reviewed as a part of the 

building permit review process for the 

adjoining lots. 

 

Y 

  

 Riprap will not be required at the inlet end of 

proposed culverts, unless the velocity of the 

flow at the inlet requires this type of erosion 

protection. 

Y   

 A drain tile system shall be provided on the 

street subgrade surface at the street low points, 

per Geotechnical report, if poorly draining 

subgrade soil type exists. 

 

Y 

To be 

determined 

with final 

 

36



Page 18 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

geotechnical 

report 

 Final grading plan should include high point 

elevations, grade breaks, typical slopes and 

drainage arrows. 

Y   

 Final construction plans shall include locations 

and details for all proposed site sedimentation 

and erosion control BMPs, including plans for 

temporary stormwater management BMPs and 

protection of permanent BMPs during 

construction. 

Y   

 The proposed storm sewer and site grading 

final design and construction plans shall be 

reviewed and approved by the City Engineer 

with consideration of VLAWMO 

recommendations. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 ISTS soil suitability report shall be provided 

with final plan application which will reflect 

suitable soil areas for septic drainfields as 

illustrated on the final construction plans. 

N/A Drainfield 

locations will 

be reviewed at 

building 

permit 

application 

 

 Small Utilities    

 All small utilities including, but not limited to 

gas, telephone, electric shall be placed 

underground in accordance with the provisions 

of all applicable City ordinances. 

Y   

 All utilities to be located in the floodplain shall 

be flood proofed in accordance with the 

building code or elevated above the flood 

protection elevation. 

Y   

 Shoreland Management Area    

 Any disturbance or planned construction work 

not shown on preliminary plans within the 

Shoreland Management Area (within 1,000 feet 

of the Ordinary High Water Level of Black 

Lake and/or the delineated edge of Wetland #1) 

shall be detailed on final construction plans. 

Comments from DNR regarding work and any 

necessary approvals shall be provided to the 

City with the Final Plan application. 

Y Any proposed 

home will be 

monitored 

during 

applications 

and required 

to meet DNR 

requirements. 

 

 Wetlands    

 No wetland impacts are proposed as part of the 

preliminary plan design. However, Black Lake 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

 

37



Page 19 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

is a DNR Protected water and the DNR 

identified OHWL as it is identified generally on 

DNR maps appears to align with the limits of 

Wetland #1 as delineated in the Wetland 

Delineation Report, dated December 11, 2018, 

prepared by Kjolhaug Environmental Services 

Company, Inc. 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 Any potential wetland impacts, mitigation, and 

conformance to WCA requirements shall be 

reviewed by VLAWMO as the LGU. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Final plans shall illustrate the required width of 

buffer strips along the perimeter of wetlands, 

and the proposed ponds in accordance with 

City-approved VLAWMO policies. The final 

construction plans shall identify the buffer 

limits and any buffer plantings or protection per 

VLAWMO Water Management Policy. 

 

Y 

Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 EOF locations into wetlands shall be reinforced 

according to city approved VLAWMO 

recommendations. 

Y   

 Final plans shall include details for restoration 

of wetland buffer areas per VLAWMO 

policies. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Any additional wetland delineation 

requirements shall be confirmed with 

VLAWMO as the LGU and provided as part of 

final construction plans. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Ensure consistent identification of wetland 

areas. It appears that wetland #9 is mislabeled. 

The wetland report identified this wetland as 

#8. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Black Lake Road extension is shown within the 

setback area of Wetland #2 and potential buffer 

areas of Wetland #2 and #3. Variance may be 

required for road improvements and expansion 

of footprint for proposed alignment, as shown 

in the preliminary plans. The applicant shall 

provide confirmation from VLAWMO, as 

LGU, regarding the improvement of existing 

farm road within the wetland setback and 

potential buffer areas between Wetlands 2 and 

3. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

38



Page 20 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 Plans shall be revised such that final 

construction plans shall include, but are not 

limited to the following: 

 a) The applicant’s engineer shall confirm 

and identify the DNR OHW elevation for Black 

Lake at 899.4 NGVD 29, per DNR 

documentation. The applicant’s surveyor shall 

locate this DNR OHWL in the field and plans 

shall be updated to reflect this OHWL. This 

includes final plans for phase 1 and all future 

development plans for phase 2. 

b) The 150-foot setback from the DNR 

OWHL, per PDA Appendix 1 shall be 

indicated on all plans. 

   

 A current wetland functional assessment 

(Minnesota Routine Assessment Method 

(MnRAM) report) for all wetlands identified in 

the Wetland Delineation Report, prepared by 

Kjolhaug Environmental Services, Dated 

December 11, 2018, shall be provided and 

plans shall be revised to illustrate applicable 

buffer widths per the MnRAM report 

 

Y 

  

 Signage    

 Local street signage, including necessary stop 

condition signage, meeting City of North Oaks 

standards shall be included in final construction 

plans. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Fire lane signage shall be provided  in 

accordance  with the requirements  of the 

Lake Johanna Fire Department 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Easements    

 Proposed Drainage easements shall fully 

encompass all stormwater management 

facilities as well as emergency overflow routes 

for ponds, wetlands, swales and ditches and 

access routes for the entire site. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 All proposed storm sewer easements shall be 

modified to a width of 20 feet and shall be 

centered on the proposed utility. The width of 

20 feet is required to provide maintenance of 

the utility in the future. 

Y Some adjusted 

for deeper 

utilities 

 

 Easements for basins shall cover the 100-year 

HWL elevation as constructed. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

 

39



Page 21 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 The following items shall be added, or 

corrected for the Phase 1 parcels: 

a. Provide a drainage easement 20 feet in 

width and centered on the existing 

drainage swale from wet basin #5, easterly to 

the road easement. 

b. Revise the building setback limit at the 

northeast corner of lot 12 to be 30 feet from the 

wetland limit. 

c. Revise the proposed trail easement at 

the northeast portion of lot 12 to match the 

building set back limit. 

 d. Provide a drainage easement 20 feet in 

width and centered on the existing drainage 

swale across lot 17 from the road easement to 

the existing wetland located north of the lot. 

e. Provide a storm pond easement on lot 

17 to cover the 100-year HWL for the basin 

located north of the lot. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The following items shall be added, or revised 

for the parcel identified as Outlot A on which 

no dwelling unit is proposed to be constructed: 

a. Provide a drainage easement 20 feet in 

width, centered on the proposed emergency 

overflow swale from wet basin # 7 across the 

lot at a location to be designed by the 

applicant’s engineer with the final construction 

plans. 

b. Revise easement covering storm pond 

and associated storm sewer facilities located on 

and adjacent to the lot to cover the entire pond 

area, including required maintenance bench. 

Add access easement from roadway and/or 

trail. 

c. Provide an additional storm sewer 

easement if storm sewer is added to drain the 

existing depression located along the proposed 

roadway. 

d. Existing or proposed future Trail 

easement extending north to cover potential 

primary trail alignment connection to 

Cherrywood Circle shall be shown. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

40



Page 22 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

 The applicant’s surveyor to verify all proposed 

easements are centered on the proposed utility 

as shown on the final plan as a part of the final 

easement development. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Conservation easements shall be provided to 

cover buffer strip areas, if recommended by 

VLAWMO. The easement documents shall 

conform to the requirements of VLAWMO. 

Y Comments 

will be 

provided for in 

final plans 

 

 Easements for roadways, drainage swales, 

utilities, ponds, wetlands, etc. shall be 

dedicated on the final RLS as shown in the 

preliminary plan/preliminary plat and shall be 

determined to be sufficient for all necessary site 

drainage, utility and roadway access and 

maintenance. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 The proposed trail easement plan illustrates a 

proposed primary trail alignment through 

Wetland #1/Open space and within its 

setback/potential buffer area to connect to the 

existing trail around Black Lake. This 

alignment and any proposed potential 

disturbance shall be reviewed and approved by 

VLAWMO as the LGU. Once approved, this 

trail shall be constructed with the development 

to provide primary trail connection. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Approvals/Permits    

 The final design and construction plans shall be 

reviewed and approved by the 

City Engineer 

Y   

 Copies of all approved permits shall be 

provided to the City Engineer upon receipt 

from each agency. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 VLAWMO review and comment of Final 

construction documents and accompanying 

analysis and recommendations shall be 

provided to the city prior to application for 

final approval. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Other Engineering Comments    

 All final construction plans shaft include 

applicable plan legends to facilitate 

comprehensive plan review. 

Y   

 Plans shall be revised such that final 

construction plans include the following: 

Y Comments 

provided for 

 

41



Page 23 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

a. Clearly illustrate construction phase 

limits applicable on each plan sheet. 

b. Removal plan shall be added to 

illustrate details of the removal of existing 

culverts and other underground facilities, where 

necessary. Removals plan shall also address 

removals of any above ground structures, such 

as buildings within the “Outlot" area. 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 Prior to final plan submittal, provide diligence 

in plan review to resolve any Preliminary plan 

typos, inconsistencies, and erroneous notes. 

Y   

 4) Existing conditions plan shall include 

field verification dates for topographic survey. 

Topographic contours on Civil Plans appear to 

differ from the existing conditions plan. Please 

verify elevations in the field as part of final 

plan development as these discrepancies in 

design documents versus topographic survey 

may result in necessary field changes if not 

addressed during plan development. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Please remove all gender specific pronoun 

references on the preliminary engineering 

plans. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 Existing conditions plan shall include field 

verification dates for topographic survey. 

Topographic contours on Civil Plans appear to 

differ from the existing conditions plan. Please 

verify elevations in the field as part of final 

plan development. 

Y   

 Final construction plans shall incorporate 

redlined engineering plan review by City 

Engineer, as applicable. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final plans 

 

 8) Phase 2 was not reviewed in a 

comprehensive manner; however, there are a 

number of issues that were identified in a 

cursory review of Phase 2 plan areas. These 

issues must be resolved prior to any further 

Preliminary plan development or application 

for Phase 2. These issues include: 

a. Phase 2, Lot 14 appears to be 

inaccessible due to required driveway setbacks 

and existing/proposed drainage facilities. 

Y Comments 

provided for 

incorporation 

into final 

plans.  

Phase 2 will 

be reviewed 

upon submittal 

 

  

 

42



Page 24 of 24 

RED FOREST WAY Final Plan 

Submission Checklist 

 

 

b. Trail easements shall not overlap with 

wetland edge. 

c. The proposed easement between phase 

2, lots 13 and 14 should be extended to the 

roadway for access purposes. 

     

 

 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



 

 
 

  

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

TO: North Oaks Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Tim Korby and John Morast, City 

Engineers, Jim Thomson, City Attorney 

 

DATE: February 7, 2022 

 

RE: North Oaks - Red Forest Way South Final Plat/Plan 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

 

At a special meeting of the North Oaks City Council on December 17, 2020, the Council 

considered and approved (subject to conditions) the Preliminary Plat/Plan (subdivision) 

application of the North Oaks Company for the first phase of the two-phase, “Red Forest 

Way South” subdivision located south of County Road H2 and west of Centerville Road, 

just north of Black Lake. 

 

At this time, the North Oaks Company is seeking formal Final Plat/Plan (subdivision) 

approval of Phase 1 of the subdivision which consists of 16 single family residential lots 

located in the northwest area of the site. 

 

The subject property occupies the southern half of “Site K” in the East Oaks Planned 

Development Agreement (PDA).  Site K makes a specific allowance for detached single 

family dwellings such as that which are proposed. 

 

Presently, 41 lots containing residential dwelling units exist in the abutting Red Forest 

Way subdivision to the north.  The 16 additional lots with dwelling units included in the 

Phase 1 Final Plat/Plan would result in a total 57 dwelling units within Site K.  The East 

Oaks PDA provides for a total of 64 dwelling units within Site K, with a permitted density 

increase of up to 30 percent.  This results in an allowed maximum of 83 dwelling units. 

 

According to the PDA and the City’s zoning map, the City’s RSL - PUD, Residential 

Single-Family Low-Density zoning district provisions apply to the subject property.  

66



 

2 
 

Additionally, the southern one-third of the site lies within the Shoreland Management Area 

of Black Lake (shoreland district), a designated “natural environment” lake. 

 

All Phase 1 lots are proposed to be served by on-site wells and septic systems. 

 

Phase 2 of the development will be subject to future Preliminary and Final Plat/Plan 
processing as part of an application which is separate from that now under consideration 
by the City. 
 

Attached for reference: 

 

Exhibit A: Site Location 

Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

Exhibit C: Project Summary 

Exhibit D: East Oaks Phasing Plan 

Exhibit E: Approved Preliminary Plat/Plan 

Exhibit F: Title Sheet (Site Context Map) 

Exhibit G: Existing Conditions 

Exhibit H: Final Plat/Plan 

Exhibit I: Final Plat/Easement Plan 

Exhibit J: Final Grading Plans 

Exhibit K: Final Erosion Control Plans 

Exhibit L: Final Storm Sewer Plans 

Exhibit M: Final Street Plans 

Exhibit N: Registered Land Survey 

Exhibit O: Easement Descriptions 

 

 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

 

Consistency with Approved Preliminary Plan.  The street and lot layouts illustrated 

on the Final Plat/Plan are similar with to that depicted upon the approved Preliminary 

Plat/Plan. 

 

Since the City’s approval of the Preliminary Plat/Plan, a number of refinements have been 

made to the Phase 1 subdivision design. In this regard, the following modifications should 

be noted: 

 

1. The street access location along Catbird Lane has been shifted slightly southward 
to reduce headlight glare upon an existing home to the west and the applicant 
agrees to install trees for screening west of Catbird Lane, opposite the proposed 
street and install landscape screening on the west side of stormwater Basin #3. 
 

67



 

3 
 

2. In the interest of saving significant trees, slight modifications have been made to 
the curvature of the loop street to follow significant portions of the existing “farm 
road” within the subdivision. 
 

3. Ditches have been replaced with linear rain garden using a vegetation filter strip 
along the south side of northwest section of the proposed street (between station 
# 36+00 and station # 41+00) to retain existing trees.   
 

4. The slight change to the street alignment and ditches requires the number of lots 
in Phase 1 to be16 vs 17, and the 17th lot will be part of Phase 2.   
 

5. The area of the existing pole building and deer barn located east of Lot P is to be 
combined with the Hill Farm Property, Tract F - RLS 561, and not be a part of the 
Red Forest Way South development area.  

 

The preceding modifications are offered by the applicant in response to input by City staff, 

are minor in nature, and serve to improve the design of the subdivision. 

 

Staging Plan.  As previously indicated, only Phase 1 of the subdivision is under formal 
consideration at this time.  To be understood is that Phase 2 of the development will be 
subject to future Preliminary Plat/Plan processing as part of an application which is 
separate from that now under consideration by the City. 
 

Dwelling Unit Count.   

Attached as Exhibit D is an updated Generalized Plan for Phasing Development of East 

Oaks provided by the applicant.  

 

The PDA called for a total of 645 dwelling units and 21 acres of commercial development 

within the East Oaks Development area.  Including an additional 28 dwelling units allowed 

via the conversion of 5.73 remaining commercial acres, a total of 673 total dwelling units 

are allowed to be constructed within the East Oaks Development Sites (645 units + 28 

commercial conversion units = 673 total dwelling units). A total of 121 dwelling units 

remain for development. The following is a summary of dwelling units allotted to the 

remaining developments in the Subject Area of the East Oaks Development: 

 

In Process: 

Gate Hill (Site G):  73 dwelling units  

Red Forest Way South   16 dwelling units 

 Phase 1 (Site K)  

Remaining Development Sites: 

 Red Forest Way South   17 dwelling units 

 Phase 2 (Site K) 

 East Preserve    1 dwelling unit 

 E-2 East Wilkinson (Phase 4)  14 dwelling units 

68



 

4 
 

 

Total:    121 dwelling units 

 
Site Access.  Consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat/Plan, the subject site is 
proposed to be accessed from the south via a northerly extension of Black Lake Road 
and from the west via Catbird Lane. 
 
As previously indicated, the Catbird Lane access point has been shifted southward to 
minimize headlight glare impacts upon the existing home to the west. 
 
Issues related to site access should be subject to comment and recommendation by the 
City Engineer. 
 
Lots 

 

Number of Lots.  The submitted Final Plat/Plan illustrates a total of 16 lots for single 

family dwelling units, which compares to 17 lots which were included in the approved 

Phase 1 Preliminary Plat/Plan.  The proposed shift of 1 lot from Phase 1 to Phase 2 

is to accommodate the proposed road alignment. 

 

Lot Size.  The RSL - PUD zoning district imposes a minimum lot area requirement of 
1.45 acres.  In addition, the Shoreland Ordinance imposes a minimum lot size 
requirement of 80,000 square feet (approx. 1.84 acres) for both sewered and 
unswered lots.  Proposed Lot D lies entirely within the Shoreland Management 
Overlay District while portions of Lots C, E and F lie within the District. 
 
The 16 lots included in Phase 1 of the subdivision range in size from 1.50 acres (Lot 
H) to 4.21 acres (Lot E) and exceed the minimum area requirements imposed in the 
RSL - PUD and Shoreland Management Overlay District as applicable. 
 
The Shoreland Management Overlay District is defined as land located within 1,000 
feet from the ordinary high-water level (OHWL) of Black Lake.  Appropriately, the 
Overlay District boundary is illustrated on the various Final Plat/Plan drawings. 
 

Setbacks.  Within RSL - PUD zoning districts, a minimum 30-foot structure setback from 

all property lines is imposed.  In addition, a 150-foot setback is required for both structures 

and sewage treatment systems from the OHWL of Black Lake (the 150-foot setback 

applies to both sewered and un-sewered lots). 

 

All Phase 1 lots demonstrate an ability to meet required structure and sewage treatment 

system setbacks. 

 
Trails.  As part of the City’s consideration of the Preliminary Plat/Plan, an easterly trail 
connection was illustrated within the Phase 2 development area.  Recognizing that Phase 

69



 

5 
 

2 development is not under consideration at this time, no trail easements are illustrated 
on the Final Plat/Plan submission. 
 
As a condition of Preliminary Plat/Plan approval it was however, recommended that the 

applicant consider the construction of the trail connection (to the existing trail to the east) 

as part of Phase 1 development.  Staff recommends that this condition be carried forward 

as a condition of Final Plat/Plan approval. 

 

Details related to trail construction are considered a matter to be determined by the 

applicant and the North Oaks Home Owners Association (NOHOA). 

 

Easements.  The submitted Final Plat/Easement Plan appropriately illustrates 
easements for utilities, stormwater, and the proposed roadway.  The acceptability of the 
proposed easements should be subject to review and approval by the City Engineer. 
 

Floor Area Ratio.  Within RSL - PUD Districts, a maximum floor area ratio of 12 percent 

is imposed (ratio of floor area of buildings to gross lot area).  Compliance with this floor 

area ratio requirement is recommended as a condition of Final Plat/Plan approval. 

 

Park Dedication and Private Open Space.  Like the approved Preliminary Plat/Plan, the 

Final Plat/Plan does not include any parkland dedication.  Park dedication requirements 

for the development sites located within the East Oaks Development area were previously 

satisfied by the developer via the following: 

 

1. Open space easements 
2. Conservation easements to the Minnesota Land Trust 
3. Rough grading of park and trail areas and the construction of trails as 

depicted on the trail plan 
4. Primary trail easements to NOHOA 
5. Conveyance of open space as depicted on the Park and Open Space Plan 

to NOHOA per the terms of the PDA 
 

To be noted is that the PDA identifies a “passive private open space” area located within 

the boundaries of Site K.  Such area is identified on Exhibit B-3 of the PDA, the Park and 

Open Space Plan as shown below. 

 

70



 

6 
 

 
 

 

Specifically, the area is located just north of Black Lake and is identified as “Future 

NOHOA Park” on the submitted “Existing Conditions” maps (attached Exhibit G).  To be 

noted is that the open space area abuts land the southern boundary of the Phase 2 

development area.  Thus, the open space area is not contiguous to the Phase 1 

development site. Conveyance of this space will occur in Phase 2. 

 

Off-Site Screening.  As a condition of Preliminary Plat/Plan approval, the applicant was 

required to provide off-site screen plantings which will minimize headlight intrusion onto 

properties located at 7 Catbird Lane and 9 Catbird Lane from Catbird Lane.  Specifically, 

the planting of eight trees was required consisting of a combination of evergreens, 

hardwoods and cedar trees. 

 

While the off-site screen planting locations are illustrated on various submitted plans 

(grading, erosion control, storm sewer, and street plans), it is recommended that specific 

tree varieties and sizes (height at time of planting) be specified by the applicant. 

 

Tree Preservation.  While both the City’s Comprehensive Plan and the East Oaks PDA 

clearly highlight the preservation of natural resources as a primary community objective, 

City ordinances do not impose specific tree preservation requirements on new residential 

subdivisions. 

71



 

7 
 

 

Recognizing that the preservation of significant trees is a paramount issue in the City, it 

is recommended that, where practical, the applicant comply with the following 

recommendations of the City Forester in an effort to preserve/save trees upon the subject 

site: 

 
A. Fell all trees to be removed towards the centerline of the street to limit injury 

to saved trees. 
 

B. Install tree protection fence immediately after tree removals. Make sure 
fence is restored by contractors on site and immediately raise fence if it is 
compromised.  Pre-construction meetings are an excellent time to 
implement the seriousness of tree preservation efforts and penalties for 
violations. 
 

C. If grade changes are excessive retaining walls may be a viable option. 
 

D. Do not place fill around save trees. 
 

E. If save trees are going to be preserved within the construction limits armor 
trees with 2X4’s to reduce the chance of mechanical injury to the trunk. 
 

F. After harvesting, blow chipped tops of trees along tree protection fencing to 
help reduce soil compaction from construction equipment and moderate soil 
temperatures and moisture levels. 
 

G. Before preserving save trees on edges make sure they are healthy (good 
structure, no decay, etc.) and will not become a hazard tree within a few 
years.  An arborist or City Forester assessment may be justified for 
individual trees. 
 

H. Root cutting and growth hormone regulator treatments for high-value trees 
are also options that could be implemented. 
 

I. Brushing of understory material outside of construction limits may be an 
option since it is 99 percent buckthorn.  An inventory to look for any 
nonbuckthorn species could be incorporated to mark and avoid those shrubs 
during buckthorn removal.  Care should be taken to minimize impacts to soil 
during this process.  Scraping off of any topsoil should be prohibited as 90 
percent of the tree’s roots are within the top one foot of soil. 
 

J. Follow the oak wilt protocol as recommended by the City Forester. 
 
Development Agreement.  The East Oaks Planned Development requires the execution 
of a development agreement prior to the recording of the registered land surveys (RLS) 
for the Site.  A condition of final plan approval, and requirement of Section 5.2 of the PDA, 

72



 

8 
 

the Developer must execute a development agreement in a form substantially similar to 
that found within the PDA, subject to future changes if any required by the City.  The 
development agreement shall be executed prior to the recording of the RLS for the site. 
 
Engineering Comments.  As a condition of Final Plan/Plat approval, final plans must 

be revised to address the City Engineer’s comments.  Upon revision, final plans and any 

necessary associated documents must be provided to the City. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Phase 1, Red Forest Way South Final Plat/Plan has been found to be consistent 
with the approved Preliminary Plan (subdivision).  Based on the preceding review, Staff 
recommends approval of the Final Plat/Plan subject to the fulfillment of the following 
conditions: 
 

1. It is acknowledged that Phase 2 of the development will be subject to future 
Preliminary Plat/Plan processing as part of an application which is separate from 
that now under consideration by the City. 
 

2. Final plans shall be revised to address the City Engineer’s comments.  Upon 
revision, final plans and any necessary associated documents shall be provided to 
the City. 
 

3. Issues related to site access shall be subject to comment and recommendation by 
the City Engineer. 
 

4. The applicant shall consider the construction of the trail connection (to the existing 
trail to the east) as part of Phase 1 development. 
 

5. The acceptability of the proposed easements shall be subject to review and 
approval by the City Engineer. 
 

6. A maximum floor area ratio of 12 percent shall be satisfied (the ratio of floor area 
of buildings to gross lot area). 
 

7. The passive private open space tract included in Site K shall be platted as a 
separate lot or tract as part of Phase 2 of the subdivision and title to the tract 
shall be conveyed to NOHOA. 
 

8. The applicant shall specify the varieties and sizes (height at time of planting) of the 
various off-site screen plantings to be located on the west side of Catbird Lane. 

 
9. Where practical, the applicant shall comply with the following recommendations of 

the City Forester in an effort to preserve/save trees upon the subject site: 
 

A. Fell all trees to be removed towards the centerline of the street to limit injury 

73



 

9 
 

to saved trees. 
 

B. Install tree protection fence immediately after tree removals.  Make sure 
fence is respected by contractors on site and immediately raise fence if it is 
compromised.  Pre-construction meetings are an excellent time to 
implement the seriousness of tree preservation efforts and penalties for 
violations. 
 

C. If grade changes are excessive retaining walls may be a viable option. 
 

D. Do not place fill around save trees. 
 

E. If save trees are going to be preserved within the construction limits armor 
trees with 2X4’s to reduce the chance of mechanical injury to the trunk. 
 

F. After harvesting, blow chipped tops of trees along tree protection fencing to 
help reduce soil compaction from construction equipment and moderate soil  
temperatures and moisture levels. 
 

G. Before preserving save trees on edges make sure they are healthy (good 
structure, no decay, etc.) and will not become a hazard tree within a few 
years.  An arborist or City Forester assessment may be justified for 
individual trees. 
 

H. Root cutting and growth hormone regulator treatments for high value trees 
are also options that could be implemented. 
 

I. Brushing of understory material outside of construction limits may be an 
option since it is 99 percent buckthorn.  An inventory to look for any 
nonbuckthorn species could be incorporated to mark and avoid those 
shrubs during buckthorn removal.  Care should be taken to minimize 
impacts to soil during this process.  Scraping off of any topsoil should be 
prohibited as 90 percent of the tree’s roots are within the top one foot of soil. 
 

J. Follow the oak wilt protocol as recommended by the City Forester. 
 
10. The applicant shall work with the City Forester and lot purchasers and explore 

options to preserve trees located upon all lots within the subdivision. 
 

11. The developer shall enter into a development agreement with the City (the form of 
which shall be acceptable to the City) and post all necessary securities required 
by it and pay all required fees and costs including all City planning, engineering, 
and legal fees.  The development agreement shall specifically require execution of 
a stormwater facilities maintenance agreement and other necessary conditions 
and shall be recorded against the subject property. 
 
 

74



 

10 
 

 
cc:  

 ___________, NOHOA Executive Director North Oaks Company 

 Jack Gleason, Department of Natural Resources 

 Phil Belfiori, Vadnais Lake Area Water Management Organization 

 Mark Houge, Gary Eagles and Lauren Grouws, North Oaks Company 

75



76



15.5

AR-25 O.H. GARAGE DOOR
16'x8' STEEL RAISED PANEL

ADDRESS STONE

9'
-5

 3
/8

"
G

AR
AG

E 
PL

AT
E 

H
EI

G
H

T

1'
-8

 3
/4

"
9'

-1
 1

/8
"

1'
-6

 3
/4

"
8'

-1
 1

/8
"

6'
-1

0"

FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

9:12

12

BLACK-OUT
2036 FIXED

PL
AT

E 
H

EI
G

H
T

PL
AT

E 
H

EI
G

H
T

MINI LAP SIDING

STONE

1'-0"

9:12
9:12

HARD BD SIDING

ALUM. FASCIA

5)  HARD BD SIDING & SHAKES

DETERMINED ON SITE BY OTHERS

SHALL BE 1'-6" TYPICAL

TO BE LOW - E

4)  ALUMINUM FASCIA &
SOFFIT ALL SIDES

HARD BD SIDING ALL OTHERS

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

6)  FINAL GRADE TO BE 

7)  ALL EXTERIOR GLAZING

3)  ALL RAKES: DEPTH
SHALL BE 1'-0" TYPICAL
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

1)  ELEVATION IS ARTIST 

ELEVATION MAY VARY
RENDERING ONLY.  ACTUAL

2)  ALL OVERHANGS: DEPTH

8)  WINDOW MANUFACTURER:

9)  O.S.B. ENTIRE 

PELLA ENCOMPASS

NOTES:

 / STONE: FRONT ONLY

EXTERIOR OF HOUSE
6"

 H
AR

D
BD

 T
R

IM
 C

O
R

N
ER

S

6"
 H

AR
D

 B
D

 T
R

IM

4" HARD BD FRIEZE

LANDING

LANDING

1'
-6

"

PL DROP

& SOFFIT

1'-0"

5'
-2

"

TO GARAGE PL.

4:12

9:12

BLACK-OUT
2030 FIXED 6:12

8:12

1'-0"

15.5

12

15.5

12

1'-0"x2'-6" LOUVRE

6'
-0

"
1'

-3
"

CONC. STOOP

1'-0" 7'-0" 1'-0"

6"3'-0"

8"1'-0" 8"

SOFFIT
2'-4"

1'-1"

1'-4"

2'
-6

"

6'-10"

6'-6"

2'-4"

1'-4"

8"

1'-4"

1'-4"

1'-0"

3"3"3"

PORCH SECTION1
1 SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

PORCH SECTION2
1 SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"

5'
-9

"

6'
-4

"

6'
-4

"

HARD BD

4" HARD BD FRIEZE

SADDLE

1'-0"

6"

6

W/ 4" HARD BD FRIEZE

H
EE

L

AWNING ROOF
W/ BRACKET- SEE DETAIL

6" BUILD-OUT

MINI LAP SIDING
W/ 4" HARDBD FRIEZE

6" BUILD-OUT

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

W
D

W
. H

EI
G

H
T

PAPER BACKING UNDER ALL ROCK,FOR STONE EXTERIOR
INSTALL KICK-OUT FLASHING
NOTE:

INSTALL TWO - MEMBRANE TAR BUILDING WRAP & TAR PAPER
EXTERIOR IN PROPER FORM

NOTE:

STONE, AND STUCCO PRODUCTS 

NOTE:

8'
-1

0"

12

15.5

2'
-0

 7
/8

"

7'-0" TOTAL WIDTH

1'
-9

"

ELIPTICAL ARCH
6'-10"

1'
-8

"

3'-6" 3'-5"

RECESS FROM SOFFIT 1"

1"

SET 1" PROUD

10'-4"

2'-1"

T&G CEDAR FIN.

8" 8"1'-0"2'-4"

1'-10"

8"

SOFFIT

1'-4" 1'-1"

W. OF ARCH

SO
FF

IT

VA
U

LT

@ SOFFIT
W. OF ARCH

@ VAULT

10"

3"

3"2'-2"

SOFFIT 1" PROUD
OF WALL FIN. ABV.

1'-0"

1"

7"7"

8"8"

6'-10" TOTAL WIDTH

OF VAULT ARCH

8"
1'

-8
"

VA
U

LT

SO
FF

IT
AR

C
H

AR
C

H

M
IN

.

9'
-1

 1
/8

"
BR

G
. H

EI
G

H
T

1'
-9

"

SOFFIT

6"

5'
-9

"

H
EE

L

SHED

6"5'-0"

6"

2'-1"

6" HARD BD BD.

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

8" HARD BD SOFFIT

ELIPTICAL BARREL VAULT

ELIPTICAL ARCH

ARCH

SOFFIT

7" 7"

6'-6"
SPACE BETW'N SOFFITS

3"
2"

ELIPTICAL ARCH

SPACE BETW'N SOFFITS

9'-10"
COL. SPACING

1"

2"

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
TYP. WDW. TRIM

1x8 HD BD HEAD

1x6 HD BD TRIM

1x6 HD BD APRON
STRAIGHT SHAKES

1x2 HD BD TRIM OVER 1x8 HD BD TRIM

(2) REC RISERS

4'-0"

12:12 AWNING ROOF
BRACKETS - SEE 3/1 BRACKET4

1

2'
-6

"

1'-6"

2"1'-0"4"

4"
1'

-8
"

6"

12
12

1'-0"

SHED ROOF

CEDAR
BRACKET

6"

MINI LAP SIDING
W/ 4" HARD BD FRIEZE

6" BUILD-OUT

HARD BD
STRAIGHT SHAKES

1/4" GAP- HOLD OPEN

7'
-0

"

4'
-9

"

D
N

 3
R

CONCRETE
COV'D. PORCH

CEDAR T&G CLG.

3-
2x

10

9'
-0

"

1'-8"

2'
-0

"

ELLIPTICAL ARCH
3'-5"

BARREL VAULT

7'
-0

"

8"
SOFFIT

(2) REC.

2'-0"

RISERS

D
N

 1
R

8"
8" 10
"

3'-11" 1'-0" 10"

14"x26" STONE BASES.

1x4 TRIM @ TOP &
1x6 TRIM W/CHAMFERED

TOP EDGE @ BTM ON

10
"

7"
7"

6" 6"

8'
-2

"

PORCH PLAN DTL.3
1 SCALE:  1/2" = 1'-0"

14"x26" STONE BASES.

1x4 TRIM @ TOP &

6x6 TRTD POST IN

1x6 TRIM W/CHAMFERED
TOP EDGE @ BTM ON

TWIN 8x8 FIN. COLS W/

6x6 TRTD POST IN
TWIN 8x8 FIN. COLS W/

INDEX OF SHEETS
NO. DESCRIPTION

1 ELEVATIONS

MAIN FLOOR PLAN
UPPER FLOOR PLAN

BUILDING SECTIONS

2
3
4
5
6
7

9

11
12

LOWER FLOOR PLAN

ROOF PLAN & SECTION

8
BUILDING SECTIONS

10
ELECTRICAL - MAIN
ELECTRICAL - LOWER

ELECTRICAL - UPPER

DECK DETAILS
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

USE METAL PAN
@ SADDLE

12'-2"9'-3" 11'-4"

9:12

O
VE

R
AL

L 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 H
EI

G
H

T

STOCKBRIDGE WDWS
AR-25 O.H. GARAGE DOOR
9'x8' STEEL RAISED PANEL

STOCKBRIDGE WDWS

6"
 H

AR
D

 B
D

 T
R

IM

6" HARD BD TRIM 6" HARD BD TRIM

6"
 H

D
 B

D
 T

R
IM

1x2 HD BD TRIM OVER
1x10 HD BD TRIM

6"
 H

D
 B

D
 T

R
IM

6"
 H

D
BD

 T
R

IM

6" HDBD TRIM

1"

8" HDBD TRIM

 HDBD TRIM

34
'-8

"

15.5:12

REAR ELEVATION
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE:  1/8" = 1'-0"

9:12

9:12

9:12

12
9

1'-6"
12

9
1'-6"

12
9

15.5:12

15.5:12

1'-0"HARD BD SIDING

HARD BD SIDING

HARD BD SIDING

HARD BD SIDING
HARD BD SIDING

12
6

2'-0" STONE
RETURN

STEP FTG'S.
AS REQ'D.

1'
-7

 3
/8

"1'-0"1'-0"
1'-0"

6'
-9

 1
/4

"

12
81'-6"

1'-7"

2'-2"

2'-0"
7"

2'
-6

"

M
AT

C
H

 P
AT

IO
D

R
 H

G
T

H
EE

L

EGRESS WDW WELL
VERIFY COMPLIANCE W/
ALL APPLICABLE CODES

44
" M

AX
.

AF
F 

TO
 S

IL
L

M
AT

C
H

 P
AT

IO
D

R
 H

G
T

1'-0"

4:12
12

4
1'-6"

6"

4" HARD BD WDW TRIM4" HARD BD
CORNER

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

VERIFY GRADE
ON SITE

4" HARD BD
CORNER

9" 10
 3

/8
"

1'-6"

1'-6"

H
EE

L

10
 3

/8
" 9

12

H
EE

L

HARD BD
SIDING

HARD BD
SHAKES

8'
-0

"
H

D
R

. H
G

T.

19
'-7

 7
/8

"
AT

H
LE

TI
C

 C
O

U
R

T 
PL

AT
E 

H
G

T.

12
9

H
EE

L

9
12

1'-6"

1'
-1

 1
/2

"

12
57 

1/
2"

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

ALUM. FASCIA
& SOFFIT

G
AR

. P
LA

TE
 H

G
T.

HARD BD SIDING

1'-5 5/8"

12
4

15.5:12

15.5:12

1'
-3

 1
/4

"
H

EE
L

SADDLE
FALSE

DORMER

VERIFY GRADE
ON SITE

9'
-5

 3
/8

"

19
'-7

 7
/8

"
AT

H
LE

TI
C

 C
O

U
R

T 
PL

AT
E 

H
G

T.

5:12
9:12PITCH BREAK

1'-0"

9:12

12
5

4" HARD BD
CORNERS

7 
1/

2"

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

1'-6"

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

1x2 OVER 1x10
TRIM, TYP.

6" HDBD. TRIM

HARD BD
SHAKES

6" HDBD. TRIM
6" HDBD. TRIM

43
'-5

"
O

.A
. B

LD
G

 H
G

T 
@

 W
AL

KO
U

T

1

REVISION RECORD
1 5-14-21  jo

BUILDER LICENSE #2459

GOLDEN VALLEY, MN 55427
OFFICE: 763-432-4500

FAX: 763-432-4501

1000 BOONE AVENUE N.
SUITE 400

2
0
2
1
 G

O
N

Y
E

A
 C

O
M

P
A

N
IE

S
C

SHEET

OF

BASEMENT

FOUNDATION
FINISHED SQUARE FEET

PROJECT

PROJECT NO.

SECOND

TOTAL

FIRST

12

GH1258

1561

5133

1703
ATHLETIC CT 580

1289

1561

IT
A

S
C

A
 -

 E
L

E
V

. 
B

GU
AN

ZI
NI

 R
ES

ID
EN

CE

N
O

R
T

H
 O

A
K

S
, 
M

N
 5

5
1
2
7

6
 S

H
E

R
W

O
O

D
 T

R
A

IL
LO

T 
8 

- B
LO

C
K 

1 
- E

AS
T 

PR
ES

ER
VE

2 6-6-21 PERMIT
3 7-6-21  jo
4 7-22-21  yz
5 8-09-21  yz
6 8-12-21 FINAL STRUCT.
7 8-31-21  yz
8 9-13-21  yz
9 12-21-21 jb

10 1-3-22 jo

77



78



79



80



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomson, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

City Engineer, Bob Kirmis, City Planner 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
RE:  6 Sherwood Trail - Conditional Use Permit  
  Home in excess of 35 feet in height  
 

Date Application Submitted   November 23, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: November 23, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  December 30, 2021 

City Council Meeting Date:   January 13, 2022 

60-day review Date:    January 22, 2022 

120-day Review Date:   March 23, 2022 

 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Otto has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow the construction 

of a new home at 6 Sherwood Trail which is in excess of 35 feet. 

The subject 3.01-acre site is zoned RSL-PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, homes in excess of 35 feet are subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to construct a home with side and rear elevations in excess of 35 

feet at a total of 43 feet and 5 inches at the highest elevation. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

81



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract H RLS 634.   

City Zoning Ordinance defines building height as “BUILDING HEIGHT. The vertical 

distance from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface.” City 

Zoning Ordinance defines building elevation as “BUILDING ELEVATION. A side view of 

the building representing the structure as projected geometrically on a vertical plane 

parallel to its chief dimension.” 

Evaluation Criteria.  In consideration of conditional use permit applications to allow for 

a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.050(D)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any 

point. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed front elevation is 34 feet and 8 inches from grade.  This 

condition has been satisfied. 

b. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 5 inches. 

This condition has been satisfied 

c. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 

or walkout level 

Staff Comment.  Based on our engineering review of the plans, topography, site and the 

Ramsey County interactive property maps and contours, the site generally slopes 

towards the south from the 920-elevation high point on the property (approximately 

where the house is situated) at approximately 3.5% - 4%. Based on these reviews, the 

proposed home appears conducive to the site’s natural layout. Based on the site’s 

location of wetlands, the ground water elevation in the proximity of the house needs to 

82



 

 

be established to confirm a three-foot separation to the basement elevation in 

compliance with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan. In addition, the City will 

review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does not 

adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site 

visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 

d. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas 

within the roof structure will be considered a full story. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed home is 2 full stories with a basement. This condition has 

been satisfied. 

e. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceed 35 feet in height 

within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building shall be setback an 

additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in height 

above 35 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 5 inches. 

The current home setbacks on the east side are 51.1, 48.4, and 50.1 feet. The proposed 

building height of 43’ 5” is 8.42’ above the 35’ threshold, requiring a minimum setback of 

46.8’. Therefore, the setbacks are within the requirement, including two that exceed 50’. 

The current rear setback is well over 100 feet. This condition has been satisfied 

f. Section 151.083 related to cost responsibility is complied with. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for a home located at 6 Sherwood Trail in excess of 35 feet subject 

to the following conditions: 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 1-4-22.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

3. Soil borings need to be performed to determine ground water elevation for basement 

elevation. 

83



 

 

4. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of construction. 

5. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

6. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

construct the home, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

C) Table the request for further study. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

cc: Jennifer Otto, Builder 

 Gretchen Needham, NOHOA  

  

 

 

84



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomson, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

and John Morast City Engineers 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
RE:  10 Sherwood Trail - Conditional Use Permit  
  Home in excess of 35 feet in height  
 

Date Application Submitted   December 22, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: December 22, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  January 27, 2022 

City Council Meeting Date:   February 10, 2022 

60-day review Date:    February 20, 2022 

120-day Review Date:   April 21, 2022 

 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Otto has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow the construction 

of a new home at 10 Sherwood Trail which is in excess of 35 feet. 

The subject 3.34-acre site is zoned RSL-PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, homes in excess of 35 feet are subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to construct a home with side and rear elevations in excess of 35 

feet at a total of 43 feet and 1 3/4 inches at the highest elevation. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

85



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract F RLS 634.   

City Zoning Ordinance defines building height as “BUILDING HEIGHT. The vertical 

distance from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface.” City 

Zoning Ordinance defines building elevation as “BUILDING ELEVATION. A side view of 

the building representing the structure as projected geometrically on a vertical plane 

parallel to its chief dimension.” 

Evaluation Criteria.  In consideration of conditional use permit applications to allow for 

a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.050(D)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any 

point. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed front elevation is 34 feet and 5 1/4 inches from grade.  

This condition has been satisfied. 

b. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 1 3/4 inches. 

This condition has been satisfied 

c. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 

or walkout level 

Staff Comment.  Based on our engineering review of the plans, topography, site and the 

Ramsey County interactive property maps and contours, the site generally slopes 

towards the south from the 920-elevation high point on the property at approximately 8% 

- 9%. The Basement Floor Elevation is 911.0, located between the 912 and 914 existing 

contours. The Garage Floor Elevation is 919.0 and is located around the 914 existing 

contour. Some grading and filling is occurring. Based on these reviews, the proposed 

86



 

 

home appears conducive to the site’s natural layout. Based on the site’s location of 

wetlands, the ground water elevation in the proximity of the house needs to be 

established to confirm a three-foot separation to the basement elevation in compliance 

with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan. In addition, the City will review all 

erosion control measures to ensure that the construction project does not adversely 

affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site visits 

during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 

d. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas 

within the roof structure will be considered a full story. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed home is 2 full stories with a basement. This condition has 

been satisfied. 

e. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceed 35 feet in height 

within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building shall be setback an 

additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in height 

above 35 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 1 3/4 inches. 

The current home setbacks on all sides are not within 50 feet. This condition has been 

satisfied. 

f. Section 151.083 related to cost responsibility is complied with. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for a home located at 10 Sherwood Trail in excess of 35 feet subject 

to the following conditions: 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-2021.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

3. Soil borings need to be performed to determine ground water elevation for basement 

elevation. 

87



 

 

4. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of construction. 

5. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

6. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

construct the home, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

C) Table the request for further study. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

cc: Jennifer Otto, Builder 

 Gretchen Needham, NOHOA  

  

 

 

88



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomson, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

and John Morast City Engineers 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
RE:  14 Sherwood Trail - Conditional Use Permit  
  Home in excess of 35 feet in height  
 

Date Application Submitted   December 22, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: December 22, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  January 27, 2022 

City Council Meeting Date:   February 10, 2022 

60-day review Date:    February 20, 2022 

120-day Review Date:   April 21, 2022 

 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Otto has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow the construction 

of a new home at 14 Sherwood Trail which is in excess of 35 feet. 

The subject 2.88-acre site is zoned RSL-PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, homes in excess of 35 feet are subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to construct a home with side and rear elevations in excess of 35 

feet at a total of 43 feet and 8 1/4 inches at the highest elevation. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

89



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract D RLS 634.   

City Zoning Ordinance defines building height as “BUILDING HEIGHT. The vertical 

distance from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface.” City 

Zoning Ordinance defines building elevation as “BUILDING ELEVATION. A side view of 

the building representing the structure as projected geometrically on a vertical plane 

parallel to its chief dimension.” 

Evaluation Criteria.  In consideration of conditional use permit applications to allow for 

a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.050(D)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any 

point. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed front elevation is 34 feet and 5 1/4 inches from grade.  

This condition has been satisfied. 

b. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 8 1/4 inches. 

This condition has been satisfied 

c. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 

or walkout level 

Staff Comment.  Based on our engineering review of the plans, topography, site and the 

Ramsey County interactive property maps and contours, the site generally slopes 

towards the south from the 922-elevation high point on the property (approximately 

where the house is situated) at approximately 13%. The Garage Floor Elevation is 

shown as 924.8 and is located between the existing 922 and 924 contours. The 

Basement Floor Elevation is listed as 916.4 and is locate at close to the existing 916 

90



 

 

countour. Based on these reviews,  the proposed home appears conducive to the site’s 

natural layout. Based on the site’s location of wetlands, the ground water elevation in the 

proximity of the house needs to be established to confirm a three-foot separation to the 

basement elevation in compliance with the City’s Surface Water Management Plan. In 

addition, the City will review all erosion control measures to ensure that the construction 

project does not adversely affect the surrounding environment. The City Engineer will 

make periodic site visits during construction to ensure all erosion control measures are 

fully complied with. 

d. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas 

within the roof structure will be considered a full story. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed home is 2 full stories with a basement. This condition has 

been satisfied. 

e. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceed 35 feet in height 

within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building shall be setback an 

additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in height 

above 35 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet 8 1/4 inches. 

The current home setbacks on all sides are not within 50 feet. This condition has been 

satisfied. 

f. Section 151.083 related to cost responsibility is complied with. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for a home located at 14 Sherwood Trail in excess of 35 feet subject 

to the following conditions: 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-2021.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

3. Soil borings need to be performed to determine ground water elevation for basement 

elevation. 

91



 

 

4. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of construction. 

5. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

6. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

construct the home, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

C) Table the request for further study. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

cc: Jennifer Otto, Builder 

 Gretchen Needham, NOHOA  

  

 

 

92



 

 

PLANNING REPORT  

 

TO:  North Oaks Planning Commission 
FROM: Kevin Kress, City Administrator, Jim Thomson, City Attorney, Tim Korby, 

and John Morast City Engineers 
DATE:  January 4, 2022 
RE:  16 Sherwood Trail - Conditional Use Permit  
  Home in excess of 35 feet in height  
 

Date Application Submitted   December 22, 2021 

Date Application Determined Complete: December 22, 2021 

Planning Commission Meeting Date:  January 27, 2022 

City Council Meeting Date:   February 10, 2022 

60-day review Date:    February 20, 2022 

120-day Review Date:   April 21, 2022 

 

BACKGROUND 

Ms. Otto has requested the approval of a conditional use permit to allow the construction 

of a new home at 16 Sherwood Trail which is in excess of 35 feet. 

The subject 5.05-acre site is zoned RSL-PUD, Residential Single-Family Low Density. 

Within RSL Districts, homes in excess of 35 feet are subject to conditional use permit 

processing. 

The applicant wishes to construct a home with side and rear elevations in excess of 35 

feet at a total of 43 feet and 1/8 inches at the highest elevation. 

Attached for reference: 

 Exhibit A: Site Location 

 Exhibit B: Applicant Narrative 

 Exhibit C: Grading, Drainage and Erosion Control Plan 

93



 

 

 Exhibit D: Site Plan 

 Exhibit E: Building Elevation 

ISSUES AND ANALYSIS 

Property Description.  As shown on the submitted survey, one individual parcel of land 

is illustrated which is presently unoccupied shown as Tract C RLS 634.   

City Zoning Ordinance defines building height as “BUILDING HEIGHT. The vertical 

distance from grade as defined herein to the top ridge of the highest roof surface.” City 

Zoning Ordinance defines building elevation as “BUILDING ELEVATION. A side view of 

the building representing the structure as projected geometrically on a vertical plane 

parallel to its chief dimension.” 

Evaluation Criteria.  In consideration of conditional use permit applications to allow for 

a home greater than 35 feet in height, Section 151.050(D)(7) of the Zoning Ordinance 

states that certain criteria must be considered.  Such criteria, as well as a Staff 

response, is provided below: 

a. The front elevation of the building does not exceed 35 feet in height at any 

point. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed front elevation is 34 feet and 3 1/2 inches fromgrade.  

This condition has been satisfied. 

b. The building height at any other elevation does not exceed 45 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet and 1/8 

inches. This condition has been satisfied 

c. The environmental and topographical conditions of the lot prior to building 

development are naturally suited to the design of a building with an egress 

or walkout level 

Staff Comment.  Based on our engineering review of the plans, topography, site and the 

Ramsey County interactive property maps and contours, the site generally slopes 

towards the south from the 920-elevation high point on the property at approximately 

10%. The Garage Floor Elevation is shown as 919.4 and situated at the existing 916 

contour. The Basement Floor Elevation is shown as 911.0 and is located at the existing 

910 existing contour.  Based on these reviews, the proposed home appears conducive 

94



 

 

to the site’s natural layout. Based on the site’s location of wetlands, the ground water 

elevation in the proximity of the house needs to be established to confirm a three-foot 

separation to the basement elevation in compliance with the City’s Surface Water 

Management Plan. In addition, the City will review all erosion control measures to 

ensure that the construction project does not adversely affect the surrounding 

environment. The City Engineer will make periodic site visits during construction to 

ensure all erosion control measures are fully complied with. 

d. Buildings shall be limited to a basement and 2 full stories. Finished areas 

within the roof structure will be considered a full story. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed home is 2 full stories with a basement. This condition has 

been satisfied. 

e. Any time the side or rear elevations of a building exceed 35 feet in height 

within 50 feet of adjacent lot lines, the building shall be setback an 

additional 2 feet from the adjacent setback line for each foot in height 

above 35 feet. 

Staff Comment.  The proposed side and rear elevation maximum is 43 feet and 1/8 

inches. The current home setbacks on all sides are not within 50 feet. This condition has 

been satisfied. 

f. Section 151.083 related to cost responsibility is complied with. 

Staff Comment.  This condition has been satisfied. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the preceding review, Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional 

use permit to allow for a home located at 16 Sherwood Trail in excess of 35 feet subject 

to the following conditions: 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-2021.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit.  

3. Soil borings need to be performed to determine ground water elevation for basement 

elevation. 

95



 

 

4. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of construction. 

5. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

6. Comments of other City Staff. 

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS 

In consideration of the conditional use permit application, the Planning Commission has 

the following options: 

A) Recommend approval, with conditions, based on the applicant's submission, the contents 

of this report, public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission finds the proposal adheres 

to all City Code requirements or will do so with conditions. 

▪ Approval at this time means that, upon City Council approval, the applicant can 

construct the home, as proposed, subject to the satisfaction of all imposed 

conditions. 

B) Recommend denial based on the applicant's submission, the contents of City Staff report, 

received public testimony and other evidence available to the Planning Commission. 

▪ This option should only be utilized if the Planning Commission can specifically 

identify one or more provisions of City Code that are not being met by the conditional 

use permit proposal. 

C) Table the request for further study. 

▪ This option should be utilized if the Planning Commission feels the proposal is 

appropriate and should move forward, but that certain design aspects need to be 

amended and brought back before a recommendation for approval can be given. 

 

cc: Jennifer Otto, Builder 

 Gretchen Needham, NOHOA  

  

 

 

96



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. xxxx 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  

CONSTRUCT A HOME IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET IN HEIGHT FOR PROPERTY 

ADDRESS 6 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 

 

 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 

the Jennifer Otto, the applicant of the real property described below, to allow for the 

construction of a home in excess of 35 feet in height on real property located at 6 Sherwood 

Trail, North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, legal described on the attached EXHIBIT 

A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 

in height; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 

a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 

before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462.357, subd. 3, on December 13, 2021, and continued the hearing to January 6, 

2022 and acted on the application on January 27, 2022, at which the Planning Commission 

voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 

subject to certain conditions.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a home in excess of 35 

feet in height, is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 1-4-21.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 

Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 

 

97



 2 

 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 10th day of February, 2022. 

      

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

  

98



 3 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 

Tract H, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

PID:  063022130012 

 

Torrens Property 

 

99



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. xxxx 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  

CONSTRUCT A HOME IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET IN HEIGHT FOR PROPERTY 

ADDRESS 10 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 

 

 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 

the Jennifer Otto, the applicant of the real property described below, to allow for the 

construction of a home in excess of 35 feet in height on real property located at 10 

Sherwood Trail, North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, legal described on the attached 

EXHIBIT A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 

in height; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 

a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 

before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462.357, subd. 3, on January 27, 2022, at which hearing the Planning Commission 

voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 

subject to certain conditions.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a home in excess of 35 

feet in height, is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-21.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 

Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 

 

 

100



 2 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 10th day of February, 2022. 

      

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

  

101



 3 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 

Tract F, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

PID:  063022130010 

 

Torrens Property 

 

102



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. xxxx 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  

CONSTRUCT A HOME IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET IN HEIGHT FOR PROPERTY 

ADDRESS 14 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 

 

 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 

the Jennifer Otto, the applicant of the real property described below, to allow for the 

construction of a home in excess of 35 feet in height on real property located at 14 

Sherwood Trail, North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, legal described on the attached 

EXHIBIT A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 

in height; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 

a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 

before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462.357, subd. 3, on January 27, 2022, at which hearing the Planning Commission 

voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 

subject to certain conditions.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a home in excess of 35 

feet in height, is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-21.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 

Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 

 

 

103



 2 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 10th day of February, 2022. 

      

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

  

104



 3 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 

Tract D, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

PID:  063022140021 

 

Torrens Property 

 

105



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. xxxx 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  

CONSTRUCT A HOME IN EXCESS OF 35 FEET IN HEIGHT FOR PROPERTY 

ADDRESS 16 SHERWOOD TRAIL 

 

 

 WHEREAS, an application for a Conditional Use Permit has been submitted by 

the Jennifer Otto, the applicant of the real property described below, to allow for the 

construction of a home in excess of 35 feet in height on real property located at 16 

Sherwood Trail, North Oaks, Ramsey County, Minnesota, legal described on the attached 

EXHIBIT A; and  

 

 WHEREAS, a Conditional Use Permit is required for a home in excess of 35 feet 

in height; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Sections 151.050 and 151.076, regarding the criteria for 

issuance of a Conditional Use Permit, and meets the minimum standards, is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan, is in conformance with the Zoning Ordinance, and does not have 

a negative impact on public health, safety, or welfare; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the Conditional Use Permit was held 

before the North Oaks Planning Commission in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462.357, subd. 3, on January 27, 2022, at which hearing the Planning Commission 

voted unanimously to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit application, 

subject to certain conditions.  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF NORTH OAKS, that a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a home in excess of 35 

feet in height, is approved subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The home shall be constructed in accordance to plan sets received 12-22-21.  

2. The proposed home shall meet all required setbacks and other zoning standards 

prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

3. Plans shall be approved by the Building Official prior to the beginning of 

construction. 

4. Any outstanding fees shall be paid prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized and directed to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the 

Ramsey County Registrar of Titles. 

 

 

106



 2 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 10th day of February, 2022. 

      

 

 

      By:  ________________________________  

       Kara Ries 

      Its: Mayor 

 

Attested: 

 

 

 

By:  ________________________________  

 Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

 

  

107



 3 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota legally described as follows: 

 

Tract C, Registered Land Survey No. 634, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

 

 

PID:  063022140020 

 

Torrens Property 

 

108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



Page 1 of 5 

 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT AND APPROVING 

VARIANCES TO THE SETBACK REQUIREMENTS FOR A SUB-SURFACE SEWAGE 

TREATMENT SYSTEM (SSTS) FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9 Ridge Road 

 

WHEREAS, the North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Section 151.050(F) prohibits an 

individual sewage treatment system from being located within thirty (30) feet of the lot 

lines on any individual lot; and  

WHEREAS, an application for a variance has been submitted by Marni Hougham 

and Craig Hara, the owners of the real property located at 9 Ridge Road, Ramsey County, 

MN (Property) legally described on the attached EXHIBIT A for the following variances: 

1.  A variance for a sub-surface sewage treatment system (SSTS) which would 

encroach 12 feet into the required 30-foot south property line setback and 6 feet 

into the required 30-foot west property line setback. 

WHEREAS, City Staff have determined that the proposed location of the SSTS, as 

shown on the site plan provided to the City of North Oaks (City) in conjunction with the 

variance application and attached hereto as EXHIBIT B, is the most viable location for the 

SSTS based on the site constraints identified in the Technical Memo prepared by Ed Eklin, 

dated August 22, 2021 and on file with the City; and 

WHEREAS, the request has been reviewed against the relevant requirements of 

North Oaks Zoning Ordinance Section 151.078, North Oaks City Code Chapter 51 and 

Section 153.022, and Minnesota Statutes, Section 462.357, subd. 6, and the requisite 

practical difficulties were found to support a grant of the requested variances, and the 

Council further makes the following findings of fact with respect to the variance 

application: 

• The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not 

permitted by the zoning ordinance. 

• The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not 

created by the landowner. 

• The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  

• The variance is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the zoning 

ordinance. 

• The terms of the variance are consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

156



Page 2 of 5 

 

• Granting the requested variance will not confer on the applicant any special 

privilege that is denied by Chapter 151 of the City Code to other lands, structures, 

or buildings in the same district. 

• The variance requested is the minimum variance which would alleviate the practical 

difficulties. 

• The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to 

adjacent land, or substantially increase the congestion of the roads and streets, or 

increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish 

or impair property values within the neighborhood. 

• At no time after the land became nonconforming was the property under common 

ownership with contiguous land, the combination of which could have been used 

to reduce or avoid the nonconformity of the land. 

WHEREAS, the variance application was considered by the North Oaks Planning 

Commission at its January 27, 2022 meeting, at which time a discussion concerning the 

variance application was held, following which the Planning Commission voted 

unanimously in favor to recommend approval of the Variance application subject to the 

Septic Inspector’s report and several conditions.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF NORTH OAKS, that the findings of fact related to the requested variance listed 

above are hereby adopted as the Council’s findings of fact to support the grant of the 

requested variances, and the following two variances are approved: 

1.  A variance for a sub-surface sewage treatment system (SSTS) which would 

encroach 12 feet into the required 30-foot south property line setback and 6 feet 

into the required 30-foot west property line setback. 

subject to the following conditions: 

1. Completion date 365 days after approval. 

2. Verification that the system is located a minimum of 50 feet away from any wells. 

3. System to be located and constructed per the Ed Eklin design dated August 22, 2021 

on file with the City. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk, Deputy City Clerk, or City Attorney 

are hereby authorized to record a certified copy of this Resolution with the Ramsey County 

Registrar of Titles. 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this 10th day of February, 2022. 

 

157



Page 3 of 5 

 

By:  ________________________________             

Kara Ries 

 Its:  Mayor 

Attested: 

By:  ________________________________  

      Kevin Kress 

Its: City Administrator 

 

  

158



Page 4 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Real property located in Ramsey County, Minnesota and legally described as 

follows: 

 

Tract E, Registered Land Survey No. 27, Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

PIN: 183022430017 

 

Torrens Property 

 

 

159



Page 5 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DEPICTION OF SSTS SITE 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

160



January Month in Review    

January 2022 

 
• Homeowner calls at @ 93 Red Fox Rd 

• We have provided copies to City Hall and NOHOA of the spreadsheets we use to 

document diseased trees so that they are available to staff as needed. 

• Ash tree inspections are in full effect, and we are working with residents to educate and 

inform on their options as Emerald Ash Borer continues to impact the community.  

• Compliance checks for timely removal of diseased oaks continues. Deadline for removal 

is February 1rst, 2022.  

 

 

161


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6b.   - 12.6.2021 Special City Council Meeting - City Administrator Performance Review.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 12.17.2021 Special City Council Meeting - City Administrator Performance Review.pdf
	Item 6d.   - 01.13.2022 City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 6e.   - 01.13.2022 City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 9a.   - RFW Final Plan Checklist.pdf
	Item 9a.   - Combined Exhibits RFW.pdf
	Item 9a.   - Red Forest Way South - Final Plan Memo.pdf
	Item 9b.   - GH1258-Tract H RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-COS 010422 (003).pdf
	Item 9b.   - 6 Sherwood Trail - Guanzini - Elev for CUP - 1-3-22 Update.pdf
	Item 9b.   - GH1335-Tract F, RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-10 SHERWOOD - COS 010422.pdf
	Item 9b.   - GH1325 TRACT D, RLS 634(EAST PRESERVE)-14 SHERWOOD-COS 120321.pdf
	Item 9b.   - GH1324-Tract C, EAST PRESERVE-16 SHERWOOD-COS PAGE 2 121621.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Staff Report 6 Sherwood Trail height updated kkjwm1-5-22.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Staff Report 10 Sherwood Trail height finalkk 2-7-22.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Staff Report 14 Sherwood Trail heightkkfinal 2-7-22.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Staff Report 16 Sherwood Trail heightkkfinal 2-7-22.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Resolution Approving 6 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Resolution Approving 10 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Resolution Approving 14 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Resolution Approving 16 sherwood trail home height CUP.pdf
	Item 9c.   - SKM_C65921102814070.pdf
	Item 9c.   - Resolution approving 9 ridge road septic variance.pdf
	Item 13a.   - January 2022 in Review.pdf

